LOWER TRENT

“ 714 Murray Street, RR. 1, Trenton, Ontario K8V 5P4
M Tel: 613-394-4829 M Fax:613-394-5226 M Website: www.ltc.on.ca B Email: information@ltc.on.ca

Registered Charitable Organization No. 107646598RR0001

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
LOWER TRENT CONSERVATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Directors refers to the General Membership as set out in the Lower Trent Conservation Administrative By-Law No. 2021-01

Administration Office, 714 Murray Street, Trenton
Virtually Join Meeting HERE
Thursday, February 10, 2022
Time: 6:30 p.m.

AGENDA
1. Meeting called to order by the Chair
2. First Nations Acknowledgement
3. Disclosure of pecuniary interests
4. Approval of the Agenda
RECOMMENDED:

THAT the agenda be approved as presented.

5. Delegations
There are no requests for delegations received for this meeting.

6. Public Input (3 minutes per speaker)

7. Adoption of the Minutes:
a. Board Meeting Minutes of December 9, 2021 Page #6

RECOMMENDED:
THAT the Regular Board Meeting Minutes of December 9, 2021 be adopted.

8. Business arising from these minutes
STANDING ITEMS

9. Correspondence — Rhonda Bateman, CAO/Secretary-Treasurer Page # 14
a. Conservation Ontario — Dec. 13, 2021 Response Letter to LTC Chair Re: Provincial Funding
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b. Environment and Climate Change Canada —Jan. 20, 2022 Letter to Bay of Quinte Restoration
Council Re: Status of the Degradation of Aesthetics Beneficial Use Impairment — Bay of Quinte Area
of Concern.

RECOMMENDED:
THAT the correspondence to the Board as provided in the agenda package be received as
information.

10. Section 28, Ontario Regulation 163/06, Development Interference with Wetlands & Alterations to
Shorelines & Watercourses Regulation - Summary of Permits approved by staff for period from
December 1, 2021 to January 31, 2022 — Janet Noyes, Manager, Development Services & Water
Resources Page # 17

RECOMMENDED:
THAT the summary of Section 28 Permits pursuant to Ontario Regulation 163/06 approved by staff
for the period from December 1, 2021 to January 31, 2022 be received as information.

11. List of Monthly Payments Issued — Kelly Vandette, Manager, Corporate Services Page # 20
RECOMMENDED:
THAT the list of payments of cheques and electronic funds transfers (EFTs) in the total amount of
$254,961.43 for the months of December 2021 and January 2022 be received as information.

12. Summary of Education and Outreach Activities — Rhonda Bateman Page # 24
RECOMMENDED:
THAT the summary of Recent and Upcoming Education & Outreach Activities be received as
information.
13.Updates

a. Drinking Water Source Protection Update — Rhonda Bateman
b. Bay of Quinte Remedial Action Plan Update — Rhonda Bateman
i. BQRAP Newsletters for December 2021 and January 2022 Page # 27
RECOMMENDED:
THAT the Drinking Water Source Protection Update and the Bay of Quinte Remedial Action Plan
Update be received as information.

c. Planning and Regulations Update — Janet Noyes
RECOMMENDED:
THAT the planning and regulations updates be received as information.

d. Flood Forecasting and Warning (FFW) and Ontario Low Water Response (OLWR) Update — Janet
Noyes
RECOMMENDED:
THAT the flood forecasting and warning, and Ontario low water response updates be received as
information.
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14. Summary of Risk Management Official Activity Pursuant to Part IV of the Clean Water Act - Period
from October 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021 — Rhonda Bateman Page # 31
RECOMMENDED:

THAT the Summary of Risk Management Official Activity pursuant to Part IV of the Clean Water
Act for the period October 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021 be received as information.

15. Conservation Lands Update - Period from September 25, 2021 to December 31, 2021 — Rhonda

Bateman Page # 34
RECOMMENDED:

THAT the Conservation Lands Update for the period September 25, 2021 to December 31, 2021
be received as information.

2021 BUSINESS

16. Annual Permit Reports — Janet Noyes Page # 36
RECOMMENDED:

THAT the Staff Report including the statistical reports provided to Conservation Ontario be received
as information.

17. Audit Report to the Board for Year Ending December 31, 2021 — Dan Coleman, Welch LLP

Page # 40
RECOMMENDED:

THAT the Audit Report to the Board, including the Draft Lower Trent Conservation Financial
Statements for the period ended December 31, 2021 as prepared and presented by Welch LLP,
Chartered Professional Accountants be adopted and circulated.

18. Members Inquiries/Other Business for 2021

19. Close 2021 Business Year
RECOMMENDED:
THAT the Lower Trent Conservation 2021 Business Year be closed.

2022 BUSINESS

20. 2022 Board of Directors Elections — Rhonda Bateman
a. Appointment of Scrutineers.
b. Election of the Lower Trent Conservation Chair.
c. Election of the Lower Trent Conservation Vice-Chair.

21. 2022 Annual Resolutions — Rhonda Bateman
a. Authority Solicitor
b. External Auditor
c. Financial Institute
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d. Signing Officers
e. Conservation Ontario Representative and Alternatives
f. Borrowing

RECOMMENDED:
THAT the law firm of Templeman LLP from the City of Belleville be engaged as solicitor for Lower
Trent Conservation for the 2022 business year;

THAT the firm of WELCH LLP be engaged as external auditor by Lower Trent Conservation for the
2022 business year at a cost of $11,000.00 plus HST;

THAT the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce in Trenton serve as Lower Trent Conservation’s
financial institute;

THAT the Authority Chair, Vice Chair, Chief Administrative Officer/Secretary Treasurer, and
Manager, Corporate Services be appointed as the signing officers for Lower Trent Conservation for
the 2022 business year; and

THAT the Lower Trent Conservation Chair be appointed as the Conservation Ontario
representative, and that the Vice-Chair and Chief Administrative Officer/Secretary Treasurer be
appointed as the Conservation Ontario Alternate Representatives for 2022.

THAT the Lower Trent Region Conservation Authority authorize staff to borrow from the approved
financial institution, if needed, up to $500,000, in accordance with Section B.12, Signing Officers,
and C.12.e, Annual Meeting, Borrowing Resolution, of By-law No. 2021-01 (Administrative By-law)
and Section 3 (5) of The Conservation Authorities Act.

OTHER BUSINESS

22. Staff Report - Warkworth Dam — WECI Application 2022 Janet Noyes Page #73
RECOMMENDED:
THAT the Board supports staff moving forward to access available funds from the Water and
Erosion Control Infrastructure (WECI) program through the Ministry of Northern Development,
Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry for required work for Warkworth Dam.

23. Proposed Updates to LTC Regulation 163/06 Policy Document — Janet Noyes Page #75
RECOMMENDED:
THAT the proposed revisions and updates to the LTC Regulation 163/06 Policy Document, dated
February 10, 2022 be adopted.

24. Program and Service Inventory — Rhonda Bateman Page # 324
RECOMMENDED:
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THAT the Draft Program and Services Inventory be approved, and further that the final version be
distributed to our municipal partners and the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and
Parks prior to February 28, 2022.

25. Phase 2 Regulatory and Policy Proposal Consultation Guide: Regulations regarding Municipal Levies,
Conservation Authority Budget Process, Transparency and Provincial Policy for the Charging of Fees by
Conservation Authorities (ERO#019-4610) — Rhonda Bateman Page # 337

RECOMMENDED:
THAT the staff report on the Phase 2 Regulatory and Policy Proposal Consultation Guide and
recommendations be accepted as information.

26. CAO's Report — Rhonda Bateman Page # 362
RECOMMENDED:
THAT the CAQ’s Report be received as information.

27. Members Inquiries/Other Business

28. Adjournment
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Agenda Item #7.a. - Minutes

LOWER TRENT

CONSERVATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Directors refers to the General Membership as set out in the Lower Trent Conservation Administrative By-Law No. 2021-01

714 Murray Street, RR. 1, Trenton, Ontario K8V 5P4

L& W Tel: 613-394-4829 M Fax: 613-394-5226 M Website: www.ltc.on.ca M Email: information@ltc.on.ca

Registered Charitable Organization No. 107646598RR0001

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES

MEETING # 2021-11

DATE: December 9, 2021
TIME: 6:27 p.m.
LOCATION: Administration Office, 714 Murray Street, Trenton / Virtually
PRESENT:
ON SITE REMOTE SITE (R)
Mary Tadman (Vice-Chair) Lynda Reid
Don Clark Bob Mullin
Eric Sandford (Chair) Rick English
Jim Alyea
Gene Brahaney
ABSENT/REGRETS: Mike Filip, Mark Bateman

STAFF: Rhonda Bateman, Janet Noyes, Kelly Vandette

1. Meeting called to order by the Chair

The meeting was called to order by Chair Sandford at 6:27 p.m.

Chair Sandford announced that Director Bateman has taken ill. The Board is thinking of Mark and

wishes him a swift recovery.

2. First Nation Acknowledgement by the Chair
“This land is located on the traditional territories of the Anishnabek, Huron-Wendat, and
Haudenosaunee (Iroquois) peoples. We acknowledge our shared responsibilities and obligations
to preserve and protect the land, air and water. We are grateful to have the privilege to meet,
explore, and connect here on these shared lands. In the spirit of friendship, peace and respect, we
extend our thanks to all the generations that came before us and cared for these lands - for time

immemorial.”

3. Disclosure of pecuniary interests

There were no pecuniary interests disclosed at this meeting.

4. Approval of the Agenda

RES: G155/21 Moved by: Mary Tadman

Seconded by: Lynda Reid
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THAT the agenda add the items to Other Business and be approved as
presented and amended.
Carried

5. Delegations
There were no delegations received for this meeting.

6. Public Input (3 minutes per speaker)
There was no Public Input or participation at this meeting.

7. Adoption of the Minutes:
RES: G156/21 Moved by: Don Clark Seconded by: Gene Brahaney
THAT the Regular Board Meeting Minutes of November 11, 2021; and
THAT the RP-21-049, RP-21-271, and RP-21-316 Hearing Board Meeting
Regular and In-Camera Session Minutes of November 11, 2021 be
adopted.
Carried

8. Business arising from these minutes
a. Meeting with Conservation Ontario Chair Andy Mitchell
Chair Sandford, Director Alyea and CAO Bateman met with the Conservation Ontario Chair Andy
Mitchell and CAO Kim Gavine to discuss the matter of provincial funding.

Director Alyea provided a summary of the discussion and noted that the smaller conservation
authorities were impacted by the cut in funds to a greater degree than the larger CAs. He
highlighted that the shortfall of funding to support staff time and legal fees for costs incurred for
regulatory compliance. There is hope that the Province will reconsider returning the funds that
were cut. It appears there would be support from municipalities and Conservation Ontario (CO)
to continue advocating. Rhonda Bateman shared that CO will be providing a strategy document
prior to the next election to assist in lobbying candidates.

Director Brahaney shared that the Premiere announced additional funding to Trent Hills for
infrastructure, bridges and roads. Other members also shared that other municipalities have
been contacted by the Province with similar additional funding for infrastructure.

RES: G157/21 Moved by: Lynda Reid Seconded by: Rick English
THAT the verbal summary regarding the meeting with CO Chair Andy
Mitchell be received as information.
Carried
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STANDING ITEMS

9. Correspondence
a. 2021-11-16 Letter from Stirling-Rawdon — Support
Rhonda Bateman, CAO/Secretary-Treasurer spoke to the letter received from Stirling-Rawdon
with a resolution of support for the letter from the Chair to Conservation Ontario for Provincial
funding. In addition, she announced that the Municipality of Brighton passed a similar resolution.

b. 2021-11-30 Letter from Welch LLP — 2021 Year End Audit Approach

RES: G158/21 Moved by: Don Clark Seconded by: Bob Mullin
THAT the correspondence be received as information.
Carried

10. Section 28, Ontario Regulation 163/06, Development Interference with Wetlands & Alterations to
Shorelines & Watercourses Regulation - Summary of Permits approved by staff for period from
November 1, 2021 to November 30, 2021

RES: G159/21 Moved by: Mary Tadman Seconded by: Gene Brahaney
THAT the summary of Section 28 Permits pursuant to Ontario Regulation
163/06 approved by staff for the period from November 1, 2021 to
November 30, 2021 be received as information.
Carried

11. List of Monthly Payments Issued
RES: G160/21 Moved by: Jim Alyea Seconded by: Lynda Reid
THAT the list of payments of cheques and electronic funds transfers
(EFTs) in the total amount of $51,061.02 for the month of November
2021 be received as information.
Carried

12. Summary of Education and Outreach Activities
RES: G161/21 Moved by: Lynda Reid Seconded by: Rick English
THAT the summary of Recent and Upcoming Education and Outreach
Activities be received as information.
Carried

13. Updates
a. Drinking Water Source Protection Update
Rhonda Bateman shared that the new Technical Rules have been released. Staff are
determining the effects of the new rules on the existing Assessment Reports and Source
protection plans. There will be work required to update both the Assessment Reports and the
Plans. Some of the policy work has been completed in anticipation of the rule changes. Keith
Taylor, Program Coordinator, has been proactive on many of these requirements.

Page 3 0of 8



Page 9

The MECP has forwarded the budgeting and workplan for the next fiscal and for the first time
has requested a two-year budget forecast. That is a sign of commitment from the province
and one we have been asking for quite some time. Keith is calculating the expenses and the
workplan submission for early January.

b. Bay of Quinte Remedial Action Plan Update

Rhonda Bateman highlighted the November 2021 BQRAP Newsletter as provided in the
agenda package. She further shared that the call for proposals from the federal government
for BQRAP funding have been released and staff are working on drafts to submit to continue
annual funding for the program.

Director Alyea asked if there was any word regarding BQRAP additional projects initiated as
he had heard in the local news of work being done through Quinte Conservation.

Rhonda Bateman responded that there were projects announced by the federal government
that were granted to Quinte Conservation including stormwater management
implementation which directly feeds into LTC's phosphorous management strategy.

RES: G162/21 Moved by: Jim Alyea Seconded by: Bob Mullin
THAT the Drinking Water Source Protection Update; and
THAT the Bay of Quinte Remedial Action Plan Update be received as
information.
Carried

Planning and Regulations Update

Janet Noyes, Manager, Development Services and Water Resources provided the following

update:

The planning and permit numbers continue to increase and exceed the all previous years’

statistics to date:

— 254 planning reviews

— 368 permit applications

— 782 new inquiries on properties not previously investigated
— 61 complaint files received

— 42 enforcement files

e Staff are working on updating the Regulations Manual for permitting and will bring
proposed edits to the Board. LTC is still waiting on changes in the Regulations. Janet Noyes
invited interested Board members to participate in a subcommittee for the update to the
LTC Regulations Manual.

e Quinte Conservation is undertaking a Lake Ontario/Bay of Quinte Shoreline Study which
includes Prince Edward County. Cataraqui CA is collaborating as well. Public input from
Quinte West residents are asking why they are not being involved in the LTC area of
shoreline. She further explained the NDMP funding model and the expectation of a 50%
municipal contribution. A quote of approximately $30 to $35K for modelling and mapping
along the shoreline has been received and if the opportunity to expand the study along
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Quinte West is requested, she will apply to NDMP for funding and reach out to Quinte
West to share in the costs of the project.

e Status of current enforcement and legal cases:
— A civil suit against LTC is in progress in regard to a permit for stream alterations
— Archer case — no dates set for trial or resolution discussions; however, LTC and
lawyer are working on correspondence for follow up.
— Borba case — next court date is scheduled for Jan. 7, 2022.
— Wielenga case — pre-trial scheduled for Jan. 14, 2022.

d. Flood Forecasting and Warning (FFW) and Ontario Low Water Response (OLWR) Update
Janet Noyes provided the following update:

e The Flood Contingency Plan is being updated for 2022

e Looking into WECI funding for additional work on Warkworth Dam for 2022 and have
contacted Trent Hills for the 50% share in funding.

e Janet Noyes is a member of the Provincial Flood Forecasting and Warning Committee.

The Province outlined its deliverables and targets to meet the recommendations from the
Flood Advisor’s Report.

RES: G163/21 Moved by: Mary Tadman Seconded by: Don Clark
THAT the planning and regulations updates; and
THAT the flood forecasting and warning (FFW), and Ontario low water
response (OLWR) updates be received as information.
Carried

STAFF REPORTS

14. 2022 Business Plan and Budgets
Rhonda Bateman spoke to the final draft 2022 Business Plan and Budgets as per provided in the
agenda package. She shared that she presented the budget at Brighton and Stirling-Rawdon and
there was good discussion and questions raised and answered. LTC received no requests for an
appeal on the apportionment within or after the 30 day appeal window.

a. Levy (matching MNRF funding under S.39 of the Conservation Authorities Act): simple
majority vote

RES: G164/21 Moved by: Mary Tadman Seconded by: Jim Alyea
THAT the matching 2022 Municipal General Levy amount of $68,831 be
approved.
Carried

b. Levy (non-matching): weighted vote
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Note — a recorded vote is required in accordance with Provincial Regulations to establish the Non-
matching Municipal Levy. The vote is weighted based on each Municipality’s Apportionment within
the Lower Trent Conservation watershed.

RES: G165/21 Moved by: Gene Brahaney Seconded by: Don Clark
THAT the non-matching 2022 Municipal General Levy amount of
$1,053,348 be approved.
VOTE VOTE
MUNICIPALITY DIRECTOR %
YES NO °
Twp. Alnwick/Haldimand Mike Filip ABSENT 10.3835
Municipality of Brighton Mary Tadman X 79706
Municipality of Brighton Mark Bateman ABSENT 79706
Mun. of Centre Hastings Eric Sandford X 29718
Twp. of Cramahe Don Clark X 8.1662
City of Quinte West Lynda Reid X 21 5356
City of Quinte West Jim Alyea X 21 5356
Twp. of Stirling-Rawdon Bob Mullin X 36846
Mun. of Trent Hills Gene Brahaney X 8.2408
Mun. of Trent Hills Rick English X 8.2408
TOTALS 8 100.00%
Apportionment present at the meeting 81.65%
Apportionment voting in favour of the motion 81.65%
Apportionment voting against the motion 0%
Apportionment absent from the Meeting 18.35%
Carried

Business Plan and Budget: simple majority vote

RES: G166/21 Moved by: Rick English Seconded by: Jim Alyea

THAT the 2022 Lower Trent Conservation Business Plan; and

THAT the 2022 Lower Trent Conservation Budget in the amount of
$2,104,621 (Operating amount of $2,006,516 and Capital amount of
$98,105) plus an estimated $950,080 for Regional Source Protection
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Program and Bay of Quinte Remedial Action Plan Partnership Programs,
be approved.
Carried

OTHER BUSINESS

15. CAO's Report
Rhonda Bateman spoke to her CAO report as provided in the agenda package. She added that MECP
confirmed that they are in receipt of our LTC Transition Plan.

16.

RES: G167/21 Moved by: Lynda Reid Seconded by: Mary Tadman

THAT the CAQ’s Report be received as information.
Carried

Members Inquiries/Other Business

Rhonda Bateman shared a newly released video that was created as a result of SPARK Tourism
funding. Two videos have been created that promote LTC’s properties. The Sager CA video was
viewed by the Board. The videos are available on the LTC YouTube channel for anyone wishing to
view them.

Rhonda Bateman spoke to an email received from Quinte West in regards to the spraying of CA
lands in the Quinte West area for Lymantria dispar dispar (Ldd) (gypsy moth). The estimated cost of
the spraying is $12K for LTC and $37K for Quinte Conservation at $113/ha. She consulted staff and
received input regarding the impact of the spraying of LTC properties:

—>
_)

Spraying not only affects Ldd but other caterpillars as well

LTC has many species of butterflies and moths on the properties. Some of these species may
be impacted by the chemical (Btk) spray.

Two endangered species (currently being monitored by entomologists) may currently exist
and overwinter on these properties, and may be impacted if the spraying occurred. Habitat
enhancement efforts have been underway on one property for one of these species since
2018.

Over 95% of songbirds that migrate to our watershed in the spring rely on caterpillars as the
main food for their young, spraying can have devastating effects on their populations.

Most trees on our properties did leaf out again at the end of the summer after the
caterpillars metamorphosed into moths or died due to the nucleopolyhedrosis virus (NPV).
In the past summer, staff saw considerable evidence of NPV killing the gypsy moths on a
large scale. Anecdotally, they saw fewer egg masses on our trees during the fall of 2021.
Conservation Lands staff will be going out over the winter and early spring to look for, and
clean off, gypsy moth egg masses on some of our properties.
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— The best defence we have is to care for our forest cover, foster a robust forest cover
consisting of a wide diversity of native trees both in our urban and rural areas. That will
protect us best in the long term.

Staff recommends not participating in the spraying for Ldd.

The Board moved in to a general discussion regarding the spraying for Ldd.

RES: G168/21 Moved by: Don Clark Seconded by: Lynda Reid
THAT the items shared by Rhonda Bateman be received as information.
Carried

Director Reid asked for a follow-up with regard to the Goodrich-Loomis CA gardens being
maintained. Rhonda Bateman responded that there is no funding allocated nor staff resources
available to attend to the gardens and that the gardens are meant to thrive in a natural
environment.

The Directors, Vice-Chair, and Chair each wished staff and the Board a wonderful holiday and a
happy new year, and to remain healthy and safe. They are keeping Director Bateman in their
thoughts and wish him a full recovery and return to the next Board meeting.

Staff thanked the Board for their support during a challenging year due to the impact of COVID-19
and its’ variants; as well as, the changes to the Conservation Authorities Act. Staff appreciate the
Members’ patience in adapting to remote/hybrid meetings.

17. Adjournment
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

RES: G169/21 Moved by: Mary Tadman Seconded by: Rick English
THAT the meeting be adjourned.
Carried
Time 7:45 p.m.
Eric Sandford, Chair Rhonda Bateman, CAO/ST
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Conservation
ONTARIO

Natural Champions

December 13, 2021

Eric Sandford
Chair, Lower Trent Conservation
Via email: ericsandford@centrehastings.com

Dear Chair Sandford:

Thank you for your letter of November 11th regarding provincial funding for conservation authorities
and follow up meeting of December 3. | am responding on behalf of the Board of Directors who
discussed your letter on December 8th.

First off, let me start by stating that the board shares your concerns regarding the cuts that were made
to conservation authorities in 2019 on top of the already inadequate provincial funding that we have
seen since the mid-90s. | can assure you that Conservation Ontario is seized by this issue and dedicates
significant time in advocating for more funding support. This is done through a variety of mechanisms
including formal pre-budget submissions (federal and provincial), in-person budget delegations,
correspondence to key ministries, briefing notes, press releases, social media and simple, direct “asks”
during meetings.

We also share your concern regarding the costs of implementing the Province’s regulations. Ironically,
we recently met with Minister Rickford’s staff from the Ministry of Northern Development, Mines,
Natural Resources and Forestry to discuss these and other concerns.

As discussed on our call of December 3rd, it is our intention to roll your request regarding provincial
funding for conservation authorities into our advocacy work leading up to the provincial election. | hope
we have captured your concerns and trust that this approach is acceptable.

As always, | am happy to discuss this matter further. Please do not hesitate to reach out.

Respectfully,
4

Andy Mitchell
Chair, Conservation Ontario

c.c. LTC Municipal Mayors
LTC Municipal Clerks

Conservation Ontario
120 Bayview Parkway, Newmarket ON L3Y 3W3
Tel: 905.895.0716 Email: info@conservationontario.ca

www.conservationontario.ca
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Agenda Item #9.b. - Correspondence

I * Environment and Environnement et
Climate Change Canada Changement climatique Canada

VIA E-Mail
January 20, 2022
Ms. Rhonda Bateman Mr. Brad McNevin
Bay of Quinte Restoration Council Bay of Quinte Restoration Council
Lower Trent Region Conservation Authority Quinte Conservation Association
714 Murray Street 2061 Old Highway 2
Trenton, Ontario K8V 5P4 Belleville, Ontario K8N 472

Dear Ms. Bateman and Mr. McNevin:

Re: Status of the Degradation of Aesthetics Beneficial Use Impairment — Bay of Quinte Area of
Concern

Based on a comprehensive review by Environment and Climate Change Canada and the Ontario
Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks of the following report:

e Bay of Quinte Degradation of Aesthetics Beneficial Use Impairment Assessment Report
(September 2020)

I am pleased to inform you that the Degradation of Aesthetics beneficial use impairment is
hereby designated as “not impaired” in the Bay of Quinte Area of Concern, pursuant to the
provisions of the Canada-U.S. Great Lakes Water Quality Agreement, 2012.

Congratulations to the members of the Bay of Quinte Area of Concern Restoration Council, the
Remedial Action Plan Team, and the local community who have worked so diligently to attain
this important environmental milestone.

| look forward to continued collaboration toward our shared goal of restoring the Bay of Quinte
and delisting it as an Area of Concern.

Regards,

’ /
== LLL/////]LL\ (4% (') Z'Lr’e‘(_

Susan Humphrey
Acting Regional Director General, Ontario Region
Environment and Climate Change Canada
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. * I Environment and Environnement et
Climate Change Canada Changement climatique Canada

DISTRIBUTION

Christopher Wilkie, Secretary — Canadian Section, International Joint Commission
Raj Bejankiwar, Physical Scientist, International Joint Commission

Chloe Stuart, Assistant Deputy Minister, Land and Water Division, MECP

Ling Mark, Director, Great Lakes and Inland Waters Branch, MECP

Carolyn O’Neill, Manager, Great Lakes Office, MECP

Daniel Joyce, COA/Great Lakes Project Manager, MECP

Jennifer McKay, Acting Associate Regional Director General, ECCC

Kate Taillon, Manager, Great Lakes Areas of Concern, ECCC

Carla Torchia, Manager, Great Lakes National Programs Office, ECCC
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Summary of Permits Approved by Staff @
ONTARIO REGULATION 163/06 - Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines & Watercourses Qe
Prepared by: Janet Noyes, Manager Development Services & Water Resources k
For Period: December 1, 2021 to January 31, 2022
Permit # Municipality Ward (?re:“g’j;as;')]?‘l)c Concession| Lot [Street Address Regulated Area Permitted Activity
P-21-321 | Quinte West |  Sidney Sidney 8 26 |28 Pines Lane Oak Lake Flood Hazard gg{;‘izg:d an above ground pool and deck
P-21-326 Trent Hills Percy Percy 11 7 44 Riverview Drive Rice Lake Flood Hazard |Demolish existing cottage
Trent River Floodplain; |[Demolish existing bunkie; construct a single
P-21-332 Trent Hills Seymour Seymour 14 7 116 Lucky Strike Road |Trent River Floodplain  |family dwelling; construct a septic sytem and
(allowance) undergo erosion protection works.
P-21-334 | Quinte West |  Sidney Sidney 1 13 114 Whites Road | S0uth Sidney Tributary 2|, o, 4ti0n of an outlet pipe into the roadside ditch
Floodplain (allowance)
P-21-337 | TrentHils | Seymour | Seymour 14 13 [232 8 Balsam Court  [Trent River Floodplain | >oro; " & Reconstruct Gottage outside of flood
Unevaluated Wetland
P-21-338 . Brighton . . (allowance); Presqu'ile ] I
(Compliance) Brighton Township Murray C 26 |28 Willow Point Road Bay Marsh PSW Construct a shed and a 3-season addition
(allowance)
P-21-340 Brighton Bnghtop Cramahe 4 4 217 Richmond Street Butler Creek Valley angtruct a 56 m2 (600 ft2) addition to the
Township (allowance) existing garage
P-21-344 Trent Hills Seymour Seymour 12 15 7690 B County Road | Trent River Floodplain Demolish existing structure
50 (allowance)
P-21-345 Trent Hills Seymour Seymour 13 14 |62 Lake Road Trent River Floodplain  |Install erosion protection along the river bank
P-21-347 Trent Hills Seymour Seymour 14 13 |214 A Hemlock Lane |Trent River Floodplain  |Install erosion protection along the river bank
Alnwick/ . . 362 7th Line Road - Rice Lake Flood Hazard |Raise cottage with new foundation; construct a
P-21-348 Haldimand Alnwick Alnwick / 22 Unit 174 (allowance) walkout basement and deck
Cramahe Unevaluated Wetland
P-21-349 Cramahe . Cramahe 1 17 |[14197 County Road 2 |(allowance); Spencer Replace septic system
Township )
Point PSW (allowance)
P.21-350 Quinte West Trenton Sidney 1 1 79 Nelles Avenue DND Creek Floodplain  |Construct a dgtached dwelling structure with
(allowance) secondary suite
Rice Lake Flood Hazard
Alnwick/ . . (allowance); Field . . .
P-21-351 Haldimand Alnwick Alnwick 8 24  |334 Sandy Bay Road Verified Wetland Erosion protection works along shoreline
(allowance)
P.21-352 Trent Hills Percy Percy 6 13 & 14 |28 Lockhart Court Percy Creek tributary Instal! a secondary entrance and a watercourse
stream crossing
P'2.1'354 Trent Hills Percy Percy 1 23 447 Concession Road |Unevaluated Wetland Construct entrance and driveway
(Minor) 2 East (allowance)
P-21-355 Trent Hills Percy Percy 4 14 |Winter Road Percy Creek tributary Install a waterf:ourse crossing as part of entrance
stream and driveway installation
P-21-356 . . Burnley Creek Abandon 110 m gas pipeline and install new
(Minor) Trent Hills Percy Percy 3 16 |Old Hastings Road Floodplain pipeline along Old Hastings Road
P'2.1'357 Trent Hills Seymour Seymour 14 16 1854 14th Line East Field Verified Wetland Install a second entrance for the sod farm
(Minor) (allowance)
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ONTARIO REGULATION 163/06 - Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines & Watercourses
Prepared by: Janet Noyes, Manager Development Services & Water Resources

Summary of Permits Approved by Staff

For Period: December 1, 2021 to January 31, 2022

Page 18

@

NS

i

Permit # Municipality Ward Gf:ﬁ;i‘;*i‘: Concession| Lot |Street Address Regulated Area Permitted Activity
Lake Ontario Tributary
Stream Floodplain . . . . .
P-21-359 Brighton | Brighton Town| Cramahe 1 3&4 |114 B Ontario Street | (allowance); S;Leb;rnepi;attrz’:;f subdivision site by cutting &
Unevaluated Wetland 9 9
(allowance)
P_2.1_360 AIn\_/wck/ Haldimand Haldimand 3 10 |[Boeve Lane Unevaluated Wetland Create and entrance and construct driveway
(Minor) Haldimand (allowance)
P.21-361 Trent Hills Seymour Seymour 13 9 23_0 Cedar Shores Trent River Floodplain Cons_truct a 3-season addition on the west side of
Drive (allowance) dwelling
P-21-362 . Presqu'ile Bay Marsh
(Minor) Quinte West Murray Murray Cc 22  |Barcovan Beach Road PSW (allowance) Install entrance for property
P-21-364 Cramahe Cramahe Cramahe 6 31 & 32 |237 Haynes Road gg:: Clléieésv\\/lvetland Demolish & reconstruct a 5 m2 detached
(Minor) Township y P accessory structure within the existing footprint
(allowance)
Unevaluated Wetland Consolidate existing earth fill material stock piles
P-21-365 Trent Hills | Campbellford Seymour 5 8 5th Line West (allowance) ot the north side of site in preparation for
recreation complex
P-21-366 AInywck/ Alnwick Alnwick 4 10 230 Hampton Rice Lake Flood Hazard Replace existing septic system
Haldimand Crescent (allowance)
P.21-367 Alnwick/ Alnwick Alnwick 3 20 12312 County Road  |Percy Creek PSW Construct a 71 m2 (768 ft2) addition to an exisitng
Haldimand 24 (allowance) detached accessory structure
Lake Ontario Flood
o4 } Brighton Hazard (allowance); - .
P-21-368 Brighton Township Murray C 35 |138 Folly Lane Presquiile Bay Marsh Replace failing septic system
PSW (allowance)
Brighton Unevaluated Wetland Demolish and reconstruct a 26 m2 (280 ft2)
P-21-371 Brighton ghtor Murray A 23 |922 Smith Street detached accessory structure within the existing
Township (allowance) footprint
P-21-372 Trent Hills Percy Percy 6 20 & 21 384 Concession Road |Unevaluated Wetland Construct 8 greenhouses and a workshop
6 East (allowance)
Massey Creek
. . . . Floodplain (allowance); |Install a septic system for secondary dwelling
P-21-373 Quinte West Sidney Sidney BF 18 [1114 Old Highway 2 Bay of Quinte Flood structure
Hazard (allowance)
P-21-374 Brighton Brighton Town Cramahe BF 5 17 Rabbit Run gse\lqu?alllliv?:r{cl\él)amh Construct a single family dwelling
P-21-375 Brighton Brighton Town Cramahe BF 5 19 Rabbit Run :zrse\/qul(JaT:)\s:r{C'\éIerh Construct a single family dwelling
P-21-381 Trent Hills Percy Percy 11 6 69 Woodlawn Drive til“z\\:va;ﬁit:)d Wetland Remove garbage and demoligh derelict shed
P.21-383 Trent Hills Seymour Seymour 9 15 121 Hearthstone Road Unevaluated Wetland Install an entrance and driveway and place

(allowance)

temporary fill piles within regulated areas
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Summary of Permits Approved by Staff @
ONTARIO REGULATION 163/06 - Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines & Watercourses Qe
Prepared by: Janet Noyes, Manager Development Services & Water Resources
For Period: December 1, 2021 to January 31, 2022
Permit # Municipality Ward qre:“?;asﬁ?: Concession| Lot |Street Address Regulated Area Permitted Activity
P-22-001 Quinte West Sidney Sidney 6 7 493 Frankford-Stirling Trent River Floodplain U_ndergo minor f_oundatlon repairs by installing
Road piles under existing covered deck structures
. . . Presqu'ile Bay Marsh . . .
P-22-005 Brighton Brighton Town| Cramahe BF 5 23 Rabbit Run PSW (allowance) Construct a single family dwelling
. . . Presqu'ile Bay Marsh . . .
P-22-006 Brighton Brighton Town| Cramahe BF 5 23 Rabbit Run PSW (allowance) Construct a single family dwelling
AMENDMENTS
Original Permit to demolish existing 96 m2 (1036
Lake Ontario Erosion ft2) coattage & 9 m2 ( 100 ft2) shed and construct
P-20-207 Quinte West Murray Murray Cc 21 |41 Clifford Street a new 116 m2 (1249 ft2) cottage with deck & 28
Hazard )
m2 (308 ft2) detached accessory structure;
Amended to include septic replacement.
P-21-099 Trent Hills Seymour Seymour 3 6 Hillside Drive Trent River Floodplain Or!gmal Permit: |nst.all banlf protectpn; Ame'nded
to include construction of single family dwelling
Orginal Permit to replace and install two septic
systems to service cottage structures; Amended
P-21-186 Trent Hills Seymour Seymour 1 5 32 A Jakes Road Trent River Floodplain  |to include the demolition of the existing dwelling
structure and reconstruction of the main dwelling
and 6 cabin structures
Original Permit: Construct a new commercial food
P-21-248 Quinte West Sidney Sidney 2 A 34 Monogram Place Glgn Miller Creek outlet bqumg and site grading; Amended to
Tributary Stream change grading and stormwater management
configuration
Lake Ontario Flood 100018 of e conlton « o 2
P-21-317 Brighton Brighton Town Murray C 34 |27 Price Street West |Hazard; Presqu'ile Bay S as p .
sevearance applications; Amended to change
Marsh PSW (allowance) | - .
driveway entrance at southern parcel location
Original Permit: Raise cottage with new
Alnwick/ . . 362 7th Line Road -  |Rice Lake Flood Hazard |foundation; construct a walkout basement and
P-21-348 | Haldimand Alnwick Alnwick ! 22 |Gnit174 (allowance) deck; Amended to include holding tank

replacement
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Lower Trent Conservation

PAYMENTS LOG - DECEMBER 2021

CHEQUE #

J EFT # PAYEE DETAILS AMOUNT
58967567 Jani-King of Eastern Ontario Dec/21 Cleaning Services - Office & Workshop - EFT 711.22
15076 A&L Canada Laboratories Inc. BQRAP - Soil Tests 240.42
15077 Battlefield Equipment Rentals Chain Saw Repairs & Maintenance 162.48
15078 Brighton Springs Water Supply - Admin Bldg 14.00
15079 CDW Canada Corp. Printer supplies 155.49
15080 City of Quinte West Monthly Utilities - Workshop 117.71
15081 Cogeco Connexion Inc. Monthly Internet - Workshop 67.74
15082 Conservation Ontario CO Geowarehouse Teranet Subscription 440.70
15083 Free Flow Petroleum Monthly gasoline - vehicles/equip 846.46
15084 Hydro One Networks Inc. Monthly Utilities - Admin Office & Workshop 813.35
15085 Janbar Electric Ltd. Electrical Repairs - Admin Office 150.29
15086 Nesda Technologies Ltd. BQRAP - Web & eMail Storage 101.63
15087 OT Group - DCB Business Systems Monthly photocopier usage/mtn services 242.68
15088 Pitney Bowes Leasing Oct-Dec/21 Postage Meter 99.53
15089 Practica CA Supplies - Dog waste bags 93.53
15090 Purolator Inc. Courier Services 5.70
15091 Quinte Paint & Wallpaper - Trenton CA Supplies - Stain 333.29
15092 Staples Commercial Office Supplies 178.96
15093 Telizon Inc Monthly Telephone Lines 453.74
15094 Cancelled Replaced by Chq #15122 0.00
15095 M. Filip 2021 Board Per Diem & Travel 200.00
15096 M. Tadman 2021 Board Per Diem & Travel 424.80
15097 M. Bateman 2021 Board Per Diem & Travel 695.60
15098 E. Sandford 2021 Board Per Diem & Travel 754.04
15099 D. Clark 2021 Board Per Diem & Travel 471.60
15100 J. Alyea 2021 Board Per Diem & Travel 393.60
15101 L. Reid 2021 Board Per Diem & Travel 300.00
15102 B. Mullin 2021 Board Per Diem & Travel 364.48
15103 G. Brahaney 2021 Board Per Diem & Travel 549.60
15104 R. English 2021 Board Per Diem & Travel 300.00
15105 B. Pomeroy 2021 SPA Board Per Diem & Travel 90.80
15106 B&T Sales Janitorial Supplies 96.03
15107 M. Narini Staff Exp Reimbursed - Clothing/PPE Allowance 254.22
15108 C. Ross DWSP - Communications 69.95
15109 G. Comeau Replaced Chq #14661 - lost 11.27
15110 C. Broughton Replaced Chq #14864 - lost 200.00
15111 Bell Canada FFW Web Hosting 26.49
15112 Bell Mobility Inc. Cellular Services 146.09
15113 Brighton Springs Water Supply - Admin Bldg 32.00
15114 Crowe Valley CA 2021-22 DWSP TCC - 2nd Installment 19,062.28
15115 Enbridge - Uniongas Monthly Utilities - Workshop & Admin Office 310.50
15116 Ferguson Tree Nursery 2022 Deposit - Native Plants & Trees Order 3,560.06
15117 Free Flow Petroleum Monthly gasoline - vehicles/equip 449.71
15118 Ganaraska Region CA 2021-22 DWSP TCC - 2nd Installment 29,697.43
15119 Hawley's Garage Vehicle - Tractor maintenance 2,193.39
15120 Hydro One Networks Inc. Monthly Utilities - Goodrich-Loomis CA Centre 88.18
15121 Kawartha Region CA 2021-22 DWSP TCC - 2nd Installment 21,248.88
15122 K. Le Video Production - LTC Conservation Areas Promotion 1,868.00
15123 Krown Rust Control Vehicles - Rust proofing 434.88
15124 OMERS Dec/21 Pension Contributions 29,342.34
15125 Otonabee Region CA 2021-22 DWSP TCC - 2nd Installment 22,800.92
15126 Pitney Bowes Works Postage Meter - Supplies 174.55
15127 River Institute BQRAP - Fish Consumption WGC Services 5,000.00
15128 Scott's Haulage Backhoe Work - Proctor Park 807.95
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Lower Trent Conservation
PAYMENTS LOG - DECEMBER 2021

CHEQUE #

J EFT # PAYEE DETAILS AMOUNT
15129 Templeman LLP Legal Services - Crews & Wienlenga 1,800.67
15130 Trenton Home Hardware CL - Supplies & Equipment Maintenance 1,555.05
15131 WSIB Ontario Dec/21 WSIB Insurance Premium 4,800.81
15132 0. Hann BQRAP - Stewardship Program 360.00

Dec/21 STMT - HST = $353.34, Admin = $4,088.46,
15133 CIBC- VISA CL = $420.46, WSS = $269.66, DWSP = $50.88 5,182.80

Total of Cheques & EFT December 2021 $ 161,347.89



Lower Trent Conservation
PAYMENTS LOG - JANUARY 2022
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CHEQUE #

[ EFT # PAYEE DETAILS AMOUNT
59060753 SunlLife Assurance Jan/22 Group Benefits Premium - EFT 6,629.66
59355156 Jani-King of Eastern Ontario Jan/22 Cleaning Services - Office & Workshop - EFT 1,127.74
59355191 OMERS Jan/22 Pension Contributions - EFT 20,970.30
15134 Templeman LLP Legal Services - Archer & Grafton Shores 5,517.23
15135 City of Quinte West Monthly Utilities - Workshop 108.44
15136 OT Group - DCB Business Systems Monthly photocopier usage/mtn services 224.86
15137 Scott's Haulage Gravel - Conservation Lands 994.17
15138 Seymour Mechanical Services Dec/21 Snowploughing - Seymour CA 79.10
15139 Bay Subaru Vebhicle - Capital Purchase Subaru Forester 34,760.04
15140 Canadian Pacific Railway Company 2022 Annual Lease - TGB 339.00
15141 CDW Canada Corp. Computer Equipment Supplies 32.30
15142 ComPsych Canada Ltd. 2022 Annual Employee Assistance Program 595.15
15143 Conservation Ontario 2022 1st Installment - CO Membership Levy 11,018.00
15144 J. McCallum Staff Expense Recovery - Office supplies 69.24
15145 A. Anderson Staff Expense Recovery - Professional Membership 508.50
15146 B&T Sales Janitorial Supplies 63.26
15147 Bell Canada FFW Web Hosting 26.49
15148 Bell Mobility Inc. Cellular Services 147.05
15149 Brighton Springs Water Supply - Admin Bldg 8.00
15150 Cogeco Connexion Inc. Monthly Internet - Worksho 89.61
15151 Enbridge - Uniongas Monthly Utilities - Workshop & Admin Office 570.78
15152 Federal Express Canada Corporation Courier Service 36.29
15153 Hydro One Networks Inc. Monthly Utilities - Admin Office, Workshop & GLCC 1,062.47
15154 KONE Inc Annual Elevator Maintenace Service Contract 1,388.64
15155 Staples Commercial Office Supplies 160.19
15156 Telizon Inc Monthly Telephone Lines 448.48
15157 Templeman LLP Legal Services - Borba 1,009.19
15158 Waste Management of Canada Jan/22 Waste Dumpster Services 67.91
15159 G. Hoskin BQRAP - Stewardship Program 500.00
15160 Municipality of Centre Hastings 2022 Interim Property Taxes 270.54
15161 Municipality of Trent Hills 2022 Interim Property Taxes 727.49
15162 PitneyWorks Postage Meter Refill 1,145.00
15163 Waste Management of Canada Feb/22 Waste Dumpster Services 68.74
15164 WSIB Ontario Jan/22 WSIB Insurance Premiums 3,549.96
15165 L. Oomen Staff Expense Recovery - Training & Clothing 233.55
15166 A. Boulton Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15167 A. Hukowich Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15168 A. Taylor Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15169 B. Spencer Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15170 B. Clark Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15171 D. Workman Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15172 F. Langmaid Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15173 G. Offshack Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15174 G. Milne Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15175 L. Burtt Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15176 M. Gibbs Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15177 R. Gagnon Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15178 R. Straka Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15179 R. Lake Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15180 R. Kelleher-MacLennan Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15181 T. Rees Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00
15182 T. Taylor Jan 26/22 SPC Meeting Per Diem 200.00

Dec/21 STMT - HST = $199.36, Admin = $39.68,
15183 CIBC - VISA FFW =$1,487.41, CL = $277.85 2,004.30
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CHEQUE #

[ EFT # PAYEE DETAILS AMOUNT
15184 Office Central Office Supplies 178.42
15185 Staples Commercial Office Supplies 113.11

Total of Cheques & EFTS January 2022 $ 93,613.54
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STAFF REPORT

Date: January 2022
L&“ To: Board of Directors
Re: Summary of Education and Outreach Events for December
LOWER TRENT 2021 and January 2022

Prepared by:  Anne Anderson, Manager of Community Outreach and Special
Projects, Corinne Ross, Communications Specialist, Jenn
McCallum, Environmental Education Technician

CONSERVATION

The following is a list of education and outreach activities staff have been working on during COVID-19.

In preparation for January programming, Jenn developed two new virtual programs, one entitled “Art and
Science of Snow”, and the other called “Our Changing Climate”. The snow program is intended to be mostly
fun (with yoga, music, and art) while also educational, and was developed specifically for Grade 2-6 classes
learning from their home environments during the modified Stage 2 Reopening. The climate change program
is intended for Grades 6-8, and is more appropriate for virtual programming while the students are learning
within the classroom. This climate change program includes some introductory climate science, but mostly
intends to empower youth to act in tangible ways that conserve resources.

Due to community demand, Jenn also translated the Art and Science of Snow program into French, as “L’art
et la science de la neige”. This French-language program has been advertised on social media, but there
haven’t been any bookings yet.

The Art and Science of Snow program has been receiving positive reviews! Here is some feedback from one
of the Grade 2 classes, who took part in the program while learning from home:

Dear Jenn,

We really liked learning about snow! We really liked making the snowflakes! We had a lot of fun drawing the
snowflakes. We loved learning about the science of how snowflakes are made. We enjoyed not having to raise our
hands.

Can you teach us about animals next time? Can we draw animals? Maybe you could teach us how to make animal
feeders.

Thank you for teaching us about snow! We appreciate you very much, Jenn and we think you are really great at
teaching.

In the data provided below, the numbers reflect as accurately as possible the actual number of students in
attendance. When students are learning from home, attendance tends to be lower than when the students
are in the classroom. Where possible, the numbers shown below indicate how many students attend the
online sessions, rather than the total number of students in the class.



RECENT EDUCATION AND OUTREACH EVENTS
Date

Dec. 1

Dec. 3

Dec. 7

Dec. 8

Dec. 9

Dec. 10

Dec. 14

Jan.

Jan.

Jan.

Jan.

Jan.

Jan.

7

10

11

12

13

14

Event

Youth education: Grafton PS — Virtual, Grade 4, Wetlands

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: Smithfield PS — Virtual, Grade 3, Get the Dirt on Soil

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: Brighton PS — Virtual, Grade 3/4, Get the Dirt on Soil

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: Brighton PS — Virtual, Grades 4-8 Learning and Life
Skills, Slytherin Snakes

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: Brighton PS — Virtual, Grade 3/4, Wetlands

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: Smithfield PS — Virtual, Grade 7, Love Your Watershed,
visit #2

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: Stockdale PS — Virtual, Grade 2/3, Awesome Plants

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: Smithfield PS — Virtual, Grade 8, Love Your Watershed,
visit #2

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: St. Mary CES, Grafton — Virtual, Grade 4/5, Art and
Science of Snow

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: St. Mary CES, Campbellford — Virtual, Grade 3, Art and
Science of Snow

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: St. Mary CES, Grafton — Virtual, Grade 4/5, Water Cycle

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: St. Peter CES, Trenton — Virtual, Grade 2, Art and
Science of Snow

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: St. Mary CES, Grafton — Virtual, Grade 3/4, Art and
Science of Snow

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: Percy Centennial PS, Warkworth — Virtual, Grade 2, Art
and Science of Snow

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
Youth education: Grafton PS — Virtual, Grades 1 and 2 (2 classes), Art and
Science of Snow

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
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Approximate
Attendance
21

20

22

20

22

17

17

23

22

24

22

14

16

10

27



Jan. 18

Jan. 20

Jan. 26

Total number of youths engaged through December and January programming

Social Media Posts

- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician

Youth education: Stockdale PS — Virtual, Grade 2/3, Art and Science of
Snow
- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician
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Youth education: Kent PS, Campbellford — Virtual, Grade 3/4, Art and
Science of Snow
- Jenn McCallum, Environmental Education Technician

Youth education: Grafton PS — Virtual, Grade 5, Art and Science of Show

21

22

17

357

Date

Post

People Reached

December 13

Hydro One Dam Safety for students

192

January 5 Snow Art Program Grade 2 -6 1,100
January 6 Snow Art Program Grade 2 -6 220
January 14 Animal Habitat 257
January 21 Climate Change Programing 231
January 24 Climate Change Programing 277

Lower Trent General Communications

Date Post People Reached
December 1 Donating to LTC programs 244
December 8 Donating to LTC programs 267
December 8 Drinking Water Source Protection — Ready for Winter 278
December 10 \Water Safety Statement 3,500
December 14 Conservation Lands Update — Proctor Park 2,000
December 16 Donating to LTC Programs 176
December 21 Donating to LTC Programs 134
December 22 Drinking Water Source Protection — Road Salt 211
December 29 Drinking Water Source Protection — Snow Storage 249
January 10 Conservation Land Update — Icy Trail Conditions 1,900
January 12 Drinking Water Source Protection — Oil Tanks 269
January 19 Drinking Water Source Protection — Snow Removal 134
January 26 Drinking Water Source Protection — Snow Removal 176

UPCOMING EDUCATION AND OUTREACH EVENTS

February 2022

Youth Education: Virtual education programs




Horent: ecosysien.

Waterlogs - December 2021

TIS’ THE SEASON - WISHING YOU AND YOUR FAMILY ALL THE BEST THIS HOLIDAY SEASON.
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TIS’ THE SEASON

“And the Grinch, with his Grinch-feet ice cold in the snow, stood puzzling and puzzling, how could it be so?
It came without ribbons. It came without tags. It came without packages, boxes or bags. And he puzzled
and puzzled ‘till his puzzler was sore. Then the Grinch thought of something he hadn’t before. What if
Christmas, he thought, doesn’t come from a store. What if Christmas, perhaps, means a little bit more.”

Dr. Seuss

Over the last 18 months or so, being out in nature has saved a lot of people’s sanity. When you are thinking of
Christmas gifts this year, nature should be top of mind. Here are a couple of ideas to give the gift of nature.

Help to preserve and protect Quinte Conservation’s public green
spaces by symbolically Adopting an Acre! From
November 15th - December 13th

For details and to adopt and acre, visit the donation page to adopt
your acre.

As a non-profit registered charity, Lower Trent Conservation invites you to
Give the ‘Gift of Green’ this year and support our Connecting Kids with

Nature youth educational program.
https://www.canadahelps.org/en/dn/9595

PLOT AND PLAN THIS WINTER

Winter is a great time to plan next spring’s
projects. Start with taking site photos

this fall, then contact our stewardship
technicians for all the details on getting

your project planned and ready for spring.
https://www.bqgrap.ca/
communityprograms/
landownerstewardship/

For details contact - Jason Jobin, BORAP Environmental Technician, Lower Trent Conservation,
P: 613-394-3915 ext. 225 E: jason.jobin@Itc.on.ca

Mary Gunning, BORAP Environmental Technician, Quinte Conservation,
P: 613-968-3434 ext. 106 E: mgunning@quinteconservaton.ca
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Waterlogs = January 2022

Today, Hhe Bay of Quinie is @ healiny ane vibren esesysiEmm.
Newy, we must foeus on keeping i this way.

A NEW YEAR'S PRESENT!

The Bay of Quinte Remedial Action Plan (BQRAP) Restoration Council is pleased to announce that another
environmental challenge, identified for the Bay of Quinte, has received official confirmation from the federal
and provincial governments of a status change to unimpaired. The challenge is: Degradation of aesthetics.

How do we define aesthetics for the Bay? In the Remedial Action Plan(RAP), the criteria states: Nearshore
surface waters of the Bay of Quinte are free of any substance due to human activity that produces a
persistent objectionable deposit, unnatural colour or turbidity or unnatural odour (for instance, oil slick or
surface scum).

Monitoring staff from Quinte Conservation and Lower Trent Conservation collected water samples from a total
of 215 sites around the Bay. The water samples were evaluated on: clarity, colour, odour and debris. These

4 categories were each assigned a score based on the observed conditions, an overall score above 9 is
considered excellent. In 2018 and 2019, the Bay achieved scores of 9.5 and 9.8 (Excellent) respectively.

Now, eight of an original eleven environmental challenges have been deemed restored. The three remaining
challenges (Eutrophication or undesirable algae, Degradation of phytoplankton and zooplankton, and
Restrictions on fish and wildlife consumption) are in the process of either having final reports compiled or a
final analysis of the scientific data. After all eleven environmental challenges have completed the formal
status change process, the Bay of Quinte can be removed from the Great Lakes Areas of Concern list.

“These are exciting times for the Bay of Quinte Restoration Council. After several decades of rehabilitation in
the Bay, we have changed the status of a number of the environmental challenges. Now, it is important to
ensure strategies are in place, so the Bay doesn’t revert to conditions that required a remedial action plan
originally,” says Rhonda Bateman, CAO of Lower Trent Conservation and Co-chair of the BQRAP Restoration
Council.

“The Bay of Quinte is a huge economic driver for the area and the source of drinking water for thousands of
area residents. Reaching this milestone in rehabilitating the Bay, is a testament to the dedication and hard
work of our federal, provincial, and municipal partners, as well as, industry, agriculture, the public, and local
conservation authorities,” says Brad McNevin, CAO of Quinte Conservation and Co-chair of the BQRAP
Restoration Council.

As the RAP starts to wind down, the process of ensuring water quality does not revert, to conditions that
required a RAP in the first place, will need to take on a more local focus. Everyone has a role to play in
maintaining the Bay’s water quality. Whether it’s implementing stewardship projects to improve water quality,
advocating for water quality issues, volunteering as a citizen scientist, or talking to your local politicians and
municipalities about actions to keep the Bay a healthy and vibrant ecosystem. Maintaining water quality is
everyone’s responsibility.

www.bqrap.ca

In partnership locally with Lower Trent Conservation and Quinte Conservation
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GOING GREEN TO SAVE SOME GREEN

”Going Green to save some Green” by Carson
Arthur, outdoor design & lifestyle expert
Tuesday, February 15 at 7:00 pm

Today’s homeowners want to make better
choices outdoors, especially when it comes to
the environment. Learn about new studies and
findings that shed light on the best choices for
you to make for your home, your home’s value,
and the planet The focus will be on water, en-
ergy, and wildlife conservation. E.g.= rain gar-
dens = native plants = pollinatorse shade trees
Register at:
hitps://www.eventbrite.ca/e/243849860497

Carson Arthur is a landscape designer and
television personality with several shows that
can be seen all around the world. Throughout
his 20-year television career, Carson teaches
homeowners how to raise the value of their
homes through outdoor renovations while

maintaining a focus on environmentally friendly choices. He is a tv mainstay as part of the North American Cityline
team. Carson also writes a column for the Halifax Chronicle Herald, the Sun media group including the Toronto Sun
about outdoor design and appears regularly in a variety of magazines with guest articles.

He is the North America outdoor design editor for Outdoor Lifestyle magazine; has a syndicated radio show called
‘Take it Outside’; is the spokesperson for Better Homes and Gardens Real Estate; and the author of the sold out
book Garden Designs for Outdoor Living and has a new book for 2019 called Vegetables, Chickens and Bees.

His credits include; the host of HGTV's Green Force and Critical Listing; the Gemini nominated Room to Grow on
Global, ION and the Discovery network; Better Homes and Garden’s Home, First Home on the Hallmark Channel in
the U.S.; and as the gardening expert on HGTV's blockbusters; Home to Win Season 1 through 4.

PLOT AND PLAN THIS WINTER

Winter is a great time to plan next spring’s
projects. Start with taking site photos

this fall, then contact our stewardship
technicians for all the details on getting

your project planned and ready for spring.
hitps://www.bqrap.ca/
communityprograms/
landownerstewardship/

For details contact - Jason Jobin, BQRAP Environmental Technician, Lower Trent Conservation,

P: 613-394-3915 ext. 225 E: jason.jobin@ltc.on.ca

Mary Gunning, BORAP Environmental Technician, Quinte Conservation,

P: 613-968-3434 ext. 106 E: mgunning@quinteconservaton.ca
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STAFF REPORT

Date: January 24, 2022
To: Board of Directors
Re: Summary of Risk Management Official Activity Pursuant to

NS

LOWER TRENT

CONSERVATION

Prepared by:

Part IV of the Clean Water Act - Period of October 1, 2021
— December 31, 2021
Chris McLeod, Risk Management Official

Anne Anderson, Risk Management Official

This report summarizes work completed by the Risk Management Official (RMO) to implement Part IV policies
in the Trent Source Protection Plan for the review period October 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

THREAT VERIFICATION
The following table details the overall work done in the watershed by the RMO to date to address verified

significant drinking water threats (SDWT) requiring RMO review.

Number of Number of Number of
Number of “Part | Additional | “Part IV” threats Total “Part IV”
Location IV”* threats as SDWT threats managed number of | threats
per RMO/I identified determined to ith Active requiring
Database (2014) be not present :’I:;Pan RMPs further
or occurring** follow-up
Stirling 109 12 80 38 21 3
Warkworth 31 0 30 1 1 0
Hastings 29 4 23 10 6 0
Campbellford | 73 3 64 12 8 0
Brighton 1 0 1 0 0 0
Colborne 1 1 1 1 1 0
Grafton 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total threats | 244 20 199 62 37 3
SDWT=Significant Drinking Water Threat RMP= Risk Management Plan

*Part IV threats are those activities to be addressed through the Risk Management Plans, Prohibition, or Restricted Land

Use provisions of the Clean Water Act.

**"Threats not present or occurring” are activities that do not meet threat circumstances or threats that were assumed
but are not actually occurring.
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Location Property Identifier Purpose Date

Stirling 6827 Drop off information, discuss potential RMP with 27-Oct-21
property owner

Stirling 6855 Drop off information, discuss potential RMP with 28-Oct-21
property owner

Stirling 6857 Drop off information, discuss potential RMP with 3-Nov-21
property owner

Stirling 6856 Drop off information, discuss potential RMP with 3-Nov-21
property owner

Stirling 1545 Drop off information regarding amendments to existing 3-Nov-21

RMP
Stirling 6855 Stop by to discuss the vulnerable area and that a RMP is 3-Nov-21
not required
Stirling 6856 Tour the property and discuss some best management 23-NOV-21
practices for RMP development
Stirling 6857 Tour the property and discuss some best management 23-NOV-21
practices for RMP development
Stirling 1545 Tour the property and discuss some best management 25-Nov-21
practices for the amended RMP development

Stirling 6856 Stop by for clarification following site tour discussion 25-Nov-21

Stirling 6856 Sign RMP 20-Dec-21

Stirling 6857 Sign RMP and drop off tank sticker 20-Dec-21

RISK MANAGEMENT PLANS (RMP)
The following table details Risk Management Plans established for the review period.

Location RMP # Activity Date Establish
6856 RMP-21-004 | Handling and Storage of DNAPLs 20-Dec-21
6857 RMP-21-003 Handling and storage of DNAPLs / Waste Disposal 20-Dec-21
Site
NOTICES
The following table details Notices issued for the review period.
Type of Notice* | Notice # Location Threat Subcategory
59 (2) (a) N-21-940 Stirling Building Permit
59 (2) (a) N-21-941 Stirling Building Permit
59 (2) (a) N-21-942 Stirling Severance
58 (6) N-21-803 Stirling Agreement to a Risk Management Plan
58 (6) N-21-804 Stirling Agreement to a Risk Management Plan

*Types of Notices

58(6) - Risk Management Official’s Notice of Agreement on a Risk Management Plan

58(13) - Risk Management Official’s Notice of Agreement on an Amendment to Risk Management Plan

59(2)(a)-Restricted Land Use Notice: neither section 57(Prohibition) nor section 58 (Risk Management Plans) applies.

S.59(2)(b) Restricted Land Use Notice: RMP Required
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INSPECTIONS
There were no Inspections during the review period.
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STAFF REPORT

Date: January 26, 2022

LM. To: Board of Directors
Re:

Conservation Lands Update for the period September 25,

LOWER TRENT 2021 to December 31, 2021

CONSERVATION Prepared by: David Beamer, Manager, Conservation Lands

PROPOSED RESOLUTION:
THAT the Conservation Lands Update for the period Sept. 25, 2021 to Dec. 31, 2021 be received as information.

REGULAR MAINTENANCE/ACTIVITES:
During the fall of 2021, regular maintenance was conducted including:

Cleaned and maintained kiosks

Removed garbage from conservation areas

Maintained 22+ km of trail systems and removed downed trees affecting trails

Removed hazard trees

Interacted with Conservation Lands visitors and responded to inquiries, complaints, and requests from
members of the public and neighbours of Conservation Areas

Coordinated maintenance of the LTC fleet

Tested and maintained water systems, septic systems, and performed other general maintenance at the
LTC Office and the Goodrich-Loomis Conservation Centre

Continued to monitor and coordinate maintenance of geocaches on C.A. Lands (including the
construction and placement of three new geocaches)

Painted various picnic tables and structures

Warkworth C.A. dam was regularly inspected

SPECIAL PROJECTS & PROGRAM IMPROVEMENTS:

Contracted professional grading to remove potholes in the Proctor Park Conservation Area parking lot.
Build a new drainage swale to address erosion issues at the Goodrich-Loomis Conservation Area.
Initiated Conservation Lands Plantation Inventory, which will lead to a Plantation Thinning Plan for four
LTC properties.

Collaborated to create a new partnership with the Brighton Children’s Centre for a new snowshoeing
program for youth at the Goodrich-Loomis Conservation Area.

Amended the Kawartha Pine Ridge District School Board contract to include a new (second) teacher at
Goodrich-Loomis.

Inspected and performed minor maintenance on Burnley Creek and Alderville Woods Natural Habitat
Areas.

Inspected and performed maintenance on flood and erosion control structures.

Removed logs at Warkworth Conservation Area dam.

Collaborated with HydroOne to remove final posts associated with osprey nest relocation at Seymour
Conservation Area.
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HAZARD TREE REMOVAL:
As per LTC's Hazard Tree Removal Policy, we inspect, document, and remove hazard trees in various LTC-

owned properties.

Goodrich-Loomis Conservation Area = 23*
Trenton Greenbelt Conservation Area = 2*
Alderville Woods Natural Habitat Area =1
Bleasdell Boulder Conservation Area =1
Seymour Conservation Area =1

Proctor Park Conservation Area =15*

Barnum House Creek Natural Habitat Area=1

* Many of these trees were removed due to the significant wind storm that we experienced in December.

CONSERVATION LANDS VANDALISM, MISUSE, AND ENFORCEMENT:
Investigated vandalism/disturbances to Conservation Areas. The most notable were:

The Kingsley Avenue entrance gate at Proctor Park Conservation Area were damaged due to a motor
vehicle collision.

The Sager Conservation Area entrance gate had been damaged due to a motor vehicle collision.

An ATV had been driving off-road at the Proctor Park Conservation Area.

A snowmobile had been driving on the trails at the Trenton Greenbelt Conservation Area.

No Section 29 ticket was issued during this period.

Murray Marsh Natural Habitat Area was patrolled 2 times during the shotgun season for deer; no
infractions were observed on LTC properties.

No complaints were received regarding dogs off leash

No individuals were observed consuming alcohol

COVID-19 AND CONSERVATION LANDS:

Event bookings were on-hold due to COVID-19 restrictions.

Trails and open areas have been kept open for passive daytime use.

Public washrooms have been reopened and are outfitted with hand sanitizer and sanitizing spray
bottles.

The Seymour Conservation Area gate between the first and second parking lots remained closed to
reduce parties from occurring at the quarry. No complaints were received due to this closure. It is
expected that this gate will be open in spring of 2022.

Signage has been installed at entry and gathering points stating that amenities such as picnic areas and
gazebos have been closed. Signs have been inspected at least weekly.

No significant COVID-19-related issues or complaints with keeping our conservation areas open.
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STAFF REPORT

Date: January 21, 2022

L& To: Board of Directors
Re: Annual Permit Reports O. Reg. 163/06
LOWER TRENT Prepared by: Janet Noyes, Manager — Development Services and Water
CONSERVATION Resources

PROPOSED RESOLUTION:
THAT the Staff Report including the statistical report provided to Conservation Ontario be received as
information.

BACKGROUND:

In April 2019, Conservation Ontario Council endorsed the Conservation Ontario (CO) Client Service and
Streamlining Initiative. This initiative identifies actions to be taken by Conservation Authorities (CAs) in order
to help the province achieve its objective of increasing housing supply while “protecting public health and
safety and the environment.” These actions include: a) Improve Client Service and Accountability, b) Increase
Speed of Approvals, and c) Reduce Red Tape and Regulatory Burden.

In June, 2019 CO developed three documents to support the initiative, which were revised in December 2019
to address input from the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO):

e CA-Municipality MOU Template for Planning and Development Reviews;

e Guideline for Client Service Standards for Conservation Authority Plan and Permit Review; and

e Guideline for CA Fee Administration Policies for Plan Review and Permitting.

In the past, service standards for Section 28 permit applications were specified by the Ministry of Natural
Resources and Forestry (MNRF) in the “Policies and Procedures for Conservation Authority Plan Review and
Permitting Activities (2010)”. More recently, as part of the commitment to improve client service and
accountability and increase speed of approvals, CO has created the Client Service Standards for Conservation
Authority Plan and Permit Review guideline that recommends new service standards for Section 28 approvals.

Application Process Step Timeline
Notification of complete application e Major permit applications: Within 14 days of the
requirements for the purpose of review pre-consultation meeting.
of the permit application by the CA, e Minor permit applications: Within 7 days of the

|II

start of “paper trail” documentation,
and discussion of timelines and fees —
Pre-consultation

pre-consultation meeting.

e This will include confirmation of whether the
application is considered major or minor, if the
applicant has provided adequate information
(including the scope and scale of the work) for the
CA to make that determination.

Notification whether the permit e Major permit applications: Within 21 days of the

application is considered complete (i.e. application being received.
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it has met submission requirements)
for the purpose of CA review

Minor permit applications: within 14 days of the
application being received.

Routine permit applications: within 10 days of the
applications being received

Decision (recommendation to approve
or refer to a hearing) or Comments to
Applicant -

Major application

Within 28 days after a complete application is
received.

Within 30 additional days upon receipt of each re-
submission.

Decision (recommendation to approve
or refer to a hearing) or Comments to
Applicant -

Minor application

Within 21 days after a complete application is
received.

15 additional days upon receipt of each re-
submission.

Decision (recommendation to approve
or refer to a hearing) or Comments to
Applicant -

Routine application

Within 14 days after a complete application is
received.

7 additional days upon receipt of each re-
submission.

As a best practice, LTC will undertake to be consistent with the timelines shown in the Table above. All timelines
presented exclude statutory holidays and the time required for the applicant to respond to CA comments on an
application. These best practice timelines are premised on the required planning approvals under the Planning
Act being in place prior to the submission of an application to the CA.

There is also an Annual Reporting recommendation for these new guidelines as outlined in the document
entitled “Annual Reporting on Timelines Template For Permissions under Section 28 of the Conservation
Authorities Act”, which was endorsed by CO Council in December 2019. These standards are initially focused
on high growth CAs but Lower Trent Conservation staff have made a commitment to follow these guidelines as
well.

Beginning in 2020, high growth CAs should report at least annually to their Board of Directors on the timeliness
of their approvals under Section 28 of the Conservation Authorities Act. It is recognized that many CAs already
do so. CAs will develop their own tracking methods to report on the timeliness of their reviews. Once the Board
has received the information, the annual report should be placed on the CA’s website, as part of the client-
centric checklist material.

An overall summary of LTC permits received and approved for the 2019 to 2021 Calendar Years has been
included with this report (Attachment 1). An Annual Report Summary for this past year (2021) has been
prepared using the template outlined in the Guideline and was provided to Conservation Ontario in January
2021 (Attachment 2) for their records. This information is being provided to the LTC Board of Directors for
information.
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. . . . . Compliance
Total Permits Major Permits Minor Permits .
Permits
Permit Permit Applications %Ap.prc-)ved Permit Permit Applications %Ap.pr(.)ved Permit Permit Applications %Ap.prc‘)ved
. . Approved Within L L Approved Within L L Approved Within
YEAR [ Applications | Applications . L. Applications | Applications . L. Applications| Applications L L.
] Within Provincial ] Within Provincial ] Within Provincial
Received Approved ) ) ) ) Received Approved ) ) ) ) Received Approved . ) ) )
Timelines Timelines Timelines Timelines Timelines Timelines
2019 338 326 324 99.4% 239 227 226 99.6% 99 99 98 99.0% 23
2020 351 325 325 100.0% 275 251 251 100.0% 76 74 74 100.0% 20
2021 383 332 325 97.9% 306 253 246 97.2% 77 79 78 98.7% 25
CO Guidelines: 28 days 21 days
Notes: Permits Received by Calendar Year

Permits Approved by Calendar Year
Some Permits are withdrawn, files closed after 6 months with incomplete application, or ongoing review
Some Permits are applied for in one year but not approved to the next year
LTC does not have a designation for Routine Permits (no DART applications)

2010 MNR Policy & Procedure Timelines: Major (90 days); Minor (30 days)
2019 CO Guideline Timeline: Major (28 days); Minor (21 days); Routine (14 days)
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Reason for Variance from

CONSERVATION Number of Permits Issued Within Number of Permits Issued Outside of Policy .
. . L Policy and Procedure
AUTHORITY Policy and Procedure Timeline and Procedure Timeline .
(Optional)
Major Minor Major Minor Major Minor
253 0 0 - -
Lower Trent Number of Permits Issued Within CO| Number of Permits Issued Outside of CO Reason for Variance from Guidelines

Conservation

Guideline Timeline Guideline timeline (Optional)
Major Minor Routine Major Minor Routine Major Minor Routine
246 78 0 7 1 0 See Notes - -

Notes:

Variance Notes:

Policy & Procedure Timeline (2010)
CO Guideline Timeline (2019)

Major - 90 days; Minor - 30 days
Major - 28 days; Minor - 21 days; Routine - 14 days

5 of these Files required Hearings so the Permit was issued > 28 days after receiving a complete application
All were issued < 20 days after the Hearing
1 of these files was over the Christmas Holiday Break and was issued 33 days after receiving a complete application
1 of these files was issued 74 days after receiving a complete application as there was no urgency in the permit
due to proposed timelines, COVID restrictions and LTC staff workload issues.
1 Minor permit issued 26 days after receiving complete application because works had already been completed and
LTC Staff workload and COVID restrictions
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AUDIT STATUS

Our audit of the financial statements of The Lower Trent Region Conservation Authority for the
year ended December 31, 2021 is substantially complete and we expect to release our auditor's
report after the following outstanding matters are completed:

° Receipt of the signed management representation letter

° Approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors

If any significant matters arise between the date of this report and the signing of our audit report
we will raise them with you. The following paragraphs provide information we are required to
communicate with you in accordance with Canadian auditing standards.

QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF ACCOUNTING PRACTICES AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our audit includes consideration of the qualitative aspects of the financial reporting process,
including matters that have a significant impact on the relevance, reliability, comparability,
understandability and materiality of the information provided in the financial statements.

There are no matters with respect to the qualitative aspects of accounting practices that we wish
to draw to your attention in relation to the financial statements for the 2021 fiscal year.

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS

We are required to obtain written representations from management as an acknowledgement of
their responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements and as audit evidence on
matters material to the financial statements. We have provided a draft of the letter of
representation as an attachment to this letter. The Manager, Corporate Services has committed to
provide us with a signed copy of the letter on a date to coincide with the date of our auditor's
report.

MISSTATEMENTS

The corrected misstatements identified during our audit are included in Appendix A. Management
made all the corrections we proposed and as a result there are no unadjusted errors to report to
you.

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL

During our audit we did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control to report to the
Board.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
1. Significant Accounting Policies

The Authority’s significant accounting policies are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

During the year there were no new accounting policies or changes to existing accounting policies.
2. Management’s Judgments and Accounting Estimates

During the audit we did not encounter any situations that required significant judgments on the
part of management or involved significant estimates.

MATTERS TO BE COMMUNICATED

Canadian Auditing Standards require us to communicate to you the following:

° Significant matters identified during the audit in connection with the Authority's
related parties;

° Whether we encountered other transactions that were unusual or not in the
normal course of business;

° Details of any frauds that we identified or information that indicates that a fraud
may exist;
° Conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's ability to

continue as a going concern; and

° Non-compliance with laws or regulations that come to the auditor's attention
during the course of the audit.

We did not encounter any such matters during the course of our audit.



Page 43

‘ ,\ 7 ®
e].Ch LLP Report to the Board of Directors

Audit e Tax e Accounting ¢ Advisory

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

During the course of our audit, we received considerable assistance from the organization’s staff
and management. We would like to take this opportunity to thank them for their efforts and for
their constructive approach to the audit.

Yours truly,
WELCH LLP
DANIEL J.W. COLEMAN, CPA, CA

PARTNER
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To be dated upon approval of financials

Welch LLP

67 Ontario Street
Trenton, ON
K8V 2G8

Dear Sirs/Madams:

We are providing this letter in connection with your au. financial statements of The
Lower Trent Region Conservation Authority (the Aythority) e year ended December 31,
2021, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whe

presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordan h Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

We acknowledge that your examination was p conducted in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards soas t you to express an opinion on the financial

system, internal control and related da
circumstances, it is not designed

xtent you considered necessary in the
o identify, nor can it necessarily be expected to disclose, fraud,

hotld any exist.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. An
item is considered material, regardless of its monetary value, if it is probable that its omission
from or misstatement in the financial statements would influence the decision of a reasonable
person relying on the financial statements.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you
during your audit:

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the engagement letter dated
January 25, 2019, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

2. The significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable.
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Information Provided

1. We have provided you with:

(a) Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation
of the financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;

(b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit;
and

(¢)  Unrestricted access to persons within the Authority from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result aud. We have assessed this risk as
low.

4. We have disclosed to you all information in relati or suspected fraud that we

5. We have disclosed to you all in
fraud, affecting the Authoritys

i relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected
ial statements communicated by employees, former

compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing
financial statements.

7. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Authority’s related parties and all the related
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

Notes and Accounts Receivable

1. Notes and accounts receivable represent valid claims relating to transactions made before
the end of the fiscal year and do not include any amount relating to services provided after
year end. Adequate provision has been made for losses which may be sustained in the
collection of receivables.

Temporary and Portfolio Investments

1. All investments that are owned by the Authority are recorded in the accounts.

2. The Authority has good title to all investments recorded in the accounts and these
investments are free from hypothecation.
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All income earned on the investments for the year has been recorded in the accounts.

Where there has been a significant adverse change in the expected timing or amount of
future cash flows from an investment, it has been appropriately written down.

Tangible Capital Assets

1.

Liabilities and Commitments

All charges to tangible capital asset accounts during the year represent actual additions to
and no expenditures of a capital nature were charged to the operations of the Authority
during the year.

All tangible capital assets sold or dismantled have been properly accounted for in the
books of the Authority.

Appropriate rates have been used to amortize the assets over their estimated useful lives
and the provisions were calculated on a basis consistent with that of the previous period.

The Authority has good title to the properties rep
capital asset accounts, and there are no liens,
the tangible capital assets shown on the book

ented by the balance carried in the

Where the value of any tangible capital asse ybeen impaired, this fact has been
disclosed to you.

1.

At the year end, with the excepti
had not been received or which
known liabilities of the Authori
financial position.

vise‘could not readily be determined or estimated, all
included and fairly stated on the statement of

At the year-end there were ntingent liabilities (e.g., discounted receivables or drafts,
guarantees, pending or unsettled suits, matters in dispute).

The Authority has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a
material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance, including all
covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

At the year-end, the Authority had no unusual commitments or contractual obligations of
any sort that were not in the ordinary course of business or that might have an adverse
effect upon the Authority.

All claims outstanding against the Authority or possible claims have been disclosed to you
and, where appropriate, reflected in the financial statements or notes thereto.

We understand that any illegal or possibly illegal act could damage the Authority or its
reputation or give rise to a claim or claims against the Authority. We are not aware of any
violations or possible violations of law or regulations the effects of which should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as the basis for recording a
contingent loss.
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Statement of Operations

1. All of the revenues of the Authority for the year has been recorded in the books of account
and disclosed in the financial statements.

2. The statement of operations contains no extraordinary or non-recurring items of material
amount except as shown thereon.

Restrictions

1. All restrictions on the use of the Authority's funds or assets, as well as all requirements or
conditions imposed by third parties, have been brought to your attentionand are
appropriately disclosed in the financial statements. The Authority complied with all
restrictions, requirements or conditions which, in the event of non-compliance could have
a significant effect on the financial statements.

2. All assets subject to a lien, pledged or assigned as s
brought to your attention and are appropriately dis

curity or guarantee for liabilities were
ed in the financial statements.

Corporate Minutes

The minute books of the Authority contain an,accurate rd of all of the business transacted at
meetings of directors and committees of dire owp he date of this letter.

Controlled and Related Entities

1. The Authority does not have re
organizations that involve con

ith any companies or other not-for-profit
joint control, or significant influence nor does the
i any other not-for-profit organization.

Related Party Transactions

1. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

2. There have been no exchanges of goods or services with any related parties during the year

that require disclosure in the financial statements.

Recognition, Measurement and Disclosure

1. Significant assumptions used in arriving at the fair values of financial instruments as
measured and disclosed in the financial statements are reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances.

2. The Authority has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or

classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.
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3. The nature of all material measurement uncertainties has been appropriately disclosed in
the financial statements, including all estimates where it is reasonably possible that the
estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material to the
financial statements.

4. The Authority did not undertake any material non-monetary transactions or transactions
for no consideration during the financial reporting period under consideration.

Going Concern

We confirm that we have assessed the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern, taking
into account all information which is at least twelve months from the year-end date, and we
conclude that the Authority is able to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future.

Other Information

Other information consists of financial or non-financial information (other than financial
statements and the auditor’s report thereon) included in-an ent annual report. An annual

ance with law, regulation or custom, the
ith information on the Authority's
operations and the Authority's financial result
statements.

1. We intend to prepare and issue mation that has not been provided to you prior
to the date of the auditor’s rep dtoprovide you with the expected timing of such

issuance.
General
1. We are unaware of any fraud possible frauds having been committed by the Authority,

its employees or any of'its directors and officers and we have disclosed to you the results
of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a
result of fraud.

2. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
Authority's financial statements.

3. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the implementation and operation of internal
controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error.

4. We are unaware of any known or probable instances of non-compliance with the
requirements of regulatory or governmental authorities, including their financial reporting
requirements.

5. The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the

aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole.
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6. In the course of your audit of our financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2021, you have recommended certain journal entries and adjustments to our books and
records as attached to this letter. We hereby acknowledge that we understand, agree with
and approve of the attached journal entries which have been considered necessary to
present fairly the financial position and operating results of our Authority.

Events Subsequent to the Year-end

No facts have been discovered which necessitate material adjustment to the year-end figures or
disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

Yours very truly,

THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY

Manager, Corporate Services

Per &
Kelly Vandette,
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Number  Date Name Account No Reference Debit Credit Recurrence Misstatement
1 12-31-21  Short Term Deposits 1019 LTC B1 44.86
1 12-31-21  Short Term Deposit - Shell Cda GLCC 1021 LTC B1 14.85
1 12-31-21  Unearned Revenue - Shell Fund 2044 LTC B1 14.85
1 12-31-21  Interest Earned - Bank 4069 CS B1 44 .86
To record investment income earned
during the year.
2 12-31-21  Wages - Permanent Regular 5101 CEO PL29-2 23,960.94
2 12-31-21  Wages - Permanent Regular 5101 L-SP PL29-2 23,960.94
To transfer portion of Youth
Education (Project code 200) program expenses to the SP E&O (Project
code 19)
3 12-31-21  Unearned Revenue - BQRAP Governance 2040 LTC HH2 141,774.50
3 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue Recognized 4016 BQRAP HH2 141,774.50
to adjust deferred revenue
contributions - BQRAP governance (#501)
4 12-31-21  Accounts Receivable 1023 LTC C1 2,690.76
4 12-31-21 HST Rebate 1025 LTC C1 246.57
4 12-31-21 Rebates & Recoveries 4077 CL C1 2,444 .19
To set up AR for Templeman LLP
invoice to be reimbursed by land owners. (rebates & recoveries project
code 107)
5 12-31-21 Rebates & Recoveries 4077 BQRAP HH2-3.1 15,000.00
5 12-31-21  Professional & Consultant Services 5501 BQRAP HH2-3. 1 15,000.00
To set up additional expenses (re.
trsfr from #501 to #515)
6 12-31-21  Accounts Payable 2007 LTC BB1 1,874.40
6 12-31-21 Heat 5350 CL BB1 62.21
6 12-31-21 Heat 5350 CS BB1 195.59
6 12-31-21  Electricity 5351 CL BB1 210.27
6 12-31-21  Electricity 5351 CS BB1 497.54
6 12-31-21  Legal Services 5505 WSS BB1 908.79
To accrue additional liabilities
at year end. (Corp Serv. Project code 051, Conserv. Land project code
052)
7 12-31-21  Accounts Receivable 1023 LTC PL28 818.57
7 12-31-21  Interest Earned - Bank 4069 CS PL28 785.96
7 12-31-21 Interest Earned - Bank 4069 R-DWSP PL28 32.61
To record bank account interest
accrual for December 2021.
8 12-31-21  Flood & Erosion Control Infrastruct 1820 LTC HHA1 40,704.08
8 12-31-21  Surplus/Deficit - Beginning of Year 3010 LTC HH1 40,704.08
8 12-31-21  Equity in Tangible CAPITALASSETS 3020 LTC HHA1 40,704.08
8 12-31-21  Erosion Control Structures 5610 CAPITALAS! HH1 40,704.08
To capitalize Warkworth Dam (from
Prepared by | Reviewed by |First Partner&econd Partnef
SL DJWC
01-25-22 01-30-22 WS1
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The Lower Trent Region Conservation Authority
Year End: December 31, 2021
Adjustments
Rev. 10/10/01
Date: 01-01-21 To 12-31-21

Number Date Name Account No Reference Debit Credit Recurrence Misstatement
Project #005)

9 12-31-21  Unearned Revenue - DWSP 2042 R-DWSP HH4 95,325.90

9 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue Recognized 4016 R-DWSP HH4 95,325.90

to record deferred revenue for DWSP

10 12-31-21 HST Rebate 1025 LTC HH2-4.1 2,188.28
10 12-31-21  Professional & Consultant Services 5501 BQRAP HH2-4.1 2,188.28

To adjust for HST recorded on UofT
invoice (project code #510)

11 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue - Stewardship 2027 LTC HH1 239.13
11 12-31-21  Grants - Special Projects 4022 CEO HH1 239.13

To recognize deferred revenue for
Murray Marsh Buffer (Project code #303)

12 12-31-21 Deferred Revenue - Youth Education 2026 LTC HH3 50,381.87
12 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue - Stewardship 2027 LTC HH3 977.50
12 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue Recognized 4016 CEO HH3 51,873.51
12 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue Recognized 4016 CEO HH3 977.50
12 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue Recognized 4016 CEO HH3 1,491.64

To recognize Youth Education
deferred revenue (project codes #200, 301,204)

13 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue - Stewardship 2027 LTC HHA1 1,514.86
13 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue Recognized 4016 CEO HHA1 1,514.86

To bring in HLCW funds to cover
for unfunded costs for Murray Marsh Buffer (Project #303)

14 12-31-21  Buildings, Structures, Bridges 1810 LTC K1 12,334.35
14 12-31-21  Surplus/Deficit - Beginning of Year 3010 LTC K1 12,334.35
14 12-31-21  Equity in Tangible CAPITALASSETS 3020 LTC K1 12,334.35
14 12-31-21  Building Maintenance 5311 CAPITALAS! K1 12,334.35

To capitalize Kings Mill
structural capital work (project #111)

15 12-31-21  IT Infrastructure 1880 LTC K1 3,275.66
15 12-31-21  Surplus/Deficit - Beginning of Year 3010 LTC K1 3,275.66
15 12-31-21  Equity in Tangible CAPITALASSETS 3020 LTC K1 3,275.66
15 12-31-21  Information Management & Technology 5775 CS K1 3,275.66

To capitalize laptop

16 12-31-21  Professional & Consultant Services 5501 BQRAP HH2-8. 1 3,257.80
16 12-31-21  Professional & Consultant Services 5501 BQRAP HH2-8. 1 3,257.80

To reallocate expenses from #516
to #510 (adjust per Kelly)

17 12-31-21  Unearned Revenue - BQRAP Programs 2041 BQRAP HH2 15,000.00
17 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue Recognized 4016 BQRAP HH2 15,000.00

Prepared by | Reviewed by |First Partner&econd Partnef

SL DIWC
01-25-22 01-30-22 WS1-1
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Number  Date Name Account No Reference Debit Credit Recurrence Misstatement

To adjust deferred revenue for

Project #515 BQRAP
18 12-31-21  Unearned Revenue - BQRAP Programs 2041 BQRAP HH2 1,772.77
18 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue Recognized 4016 BQRAP HH2 1,772.77

To adjust deferred revenue for

Project #510 BQRAP
19 12-31-21  Unearned Revenue - BQRAP Programs 2041 BQRAP HH2 4,042.10
19 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue Recognized 4016 BQRAP HH2 4,042.10

To adjust deferred revenue for

Project #518 BQRAP
20 12-31-21  Unearned Revenue - BQRAP Programs 2041 BQRAP HH2 36,984.52
20 12-31-21  Deferred Revenue Recognized 4016 BQRAP HH2 36,984.52

To adjust deferred revenue for

Project #516 BQRAP
21 12-31-21  Surplus/Deficit - Beginning of Year 3010 LTC JJ2-2 49,053.00
21 12-31-21  Reserve for Special Projects 3111 LTC JJ2-2 1,840.00
21 12-31-21  Reserve for Vehicles & Equip 3113 LTC JJ2-2 15,275.00
21 12-31-21 Reserve for IT Infrastructure 3114 LTC JJ2-2 6,000.00
21 12-31-21  Reserve for Bldgs, Struct, Bridges 3115LTC JJ2-2 16,000.00
21 12-31-21 Reserve for Land Infrastructure 3116 LTC JJ2-2 9,938.00

To allocate municipal capital

levies to corresponding reserves (per Capital Plan)
22 12-31-21  Land 1805 LTC K1 746.00
22 12-31-21  Surplus/Deficit - Beginning of Year 3010 LTC K1 746.00
22 12-31-21  Equity in Tangible CAPITALASSETS 3020 LTC K1 746.00
22 12-31-21  Land Disposal Proceeds 4088 LTC K1 746.00

To remove cost of Hortop land

disposed of for nil consideration.
23 12-31-21  A/A Buildings, Structures, Bridges 1815LTC K1 13,273.00
23 12-31-21  A/A Flood & Erosion Control Infrast 1825 LTC K1 3,420.00
23 12-31-21  A/A Lands Infrastructure 1835LTC K1 2,338.00
23 12-31-21  A/A Furniture & Fixtures 1845LTC K1 514.00
23 12-31-21  A/A Heavy Equip & Vehicles 1855 LTC K1 2,675.00
23 12-31-21 A/A Heavy Equip & Vehicles 1855 LTC K1 17,960.00
23 12-31-21  A/AIT Infrastructure 1885 LTC K1 728.00
23 12-31-21  A/AIT Infrastructure 1885LTC K1 1,287.00
23 12-31-21  A/AIT Infrastructure 1885LTC K1 4,771.00
23 12-31-21  Surplus/Deficit - Beginning of Year 3010 LTC K1 46,966.00
23 12-31-21  Equity in Tangible CAPITALASSETS 3020 LTC K1 46,966.00
23 12-31-21  Amortization Expense 5910 LTC K1 46,966.00

To record amortization for the year
25 12-31-21  Surplus/Deficit - Beginning of Year 3010 LTC 15,611.00
25 12-31-21 Reserve for IT Infrastructure 3114 LTC 3,276.00
25 12-31-21  Reserve for Bldgs, Struct, Bridges 3115LTC 12,335.00

Prepared by | Reviewed by |First Partner&econd Partnef
SL DJWC
01-25-22 01-30-22 WS1-2
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Number  Date Name Account No Reference Debit Credit Recurrence Misstatement
To charge reserves for items
approved in capital management plan
672,071.43 672,071.43
Net Income (Loss) 241,807.02

Prepared by

Reviewed by

First Partner&econd Partne

r

SL
01-25-22

DJWC
01-30-22

Ws1-3
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MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The financial statements of The Lower Trent Region Conservation Authority are the responsibility
of management and have been approved by the Board.

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards, as issued by the Public Sector Accounting Board of The Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. A summary of the significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 to the
financial statements. The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates
based on management's judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period
cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods.

The Authority's management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in
compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available
on a timely basis for preparation of the financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated
by management.

The financial statements have been audited by Welch LLP, independent external auditors
appointed by the Authority, in accordance with Canadian auditing standards. The accompanying
Independent Auditor's Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their
opinion on the Authority's financial statements,

Rhonda Bateman Kelly Vandette
Chief Administrative Officer Manager, Corporate Services

Date to be determined
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of THE LOWER TRENT REGION
CONSERVATION AUTHORITY, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2021, and the statements of surplus, changes in net financial assets, operations and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as at December 31, 2021, and its results of operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We' are independent of the Authority in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Authority's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Authority
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and dre considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in'a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Trenton, Ontario CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
Date to be determined LICENSED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
(Established under the Conservation Authorities Act of Ontario)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2021

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash
Short term investment - note 3
Accounts receivable:
Municipalities
Other

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Due to partnership programs - note 5
Deferred contributions - note 4

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets - schedule 4
Prepaid expenditures

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

Represented by:
Operating fund - note 6
Reserve funds - note 7
Equity in tangible capital assets

Approved on behalf of the Board

Director

Director

(See accompanying notes)

2021 2020
$ 2,026,174 $ 1,601,148
63,858 63,799
20,180 15,460
11,474 63,626

2,121,686 1,744,033

97,031 104,846
39,721 50,149
343,493 124,940
207,745 258,650
687,990 538,585

1,433,696 1,205,448

2,944,036 2,935,433
21,468 16,512

2,965,504 2,951,945
$ 4,399,200 $ 4,157,393

$ 807,652 $ 607,890
647,512 614,070
2,944,036 2,935,433

$ 4,399,200 $ 4,157,393
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THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF SURPLUS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS , beginning of year $4,157,393 $3,767,580

Annual surplus 241,807 389,813

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, end of year $4,399,200  $4,157,393

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, beginning of year $1205448 $ 801,103

Annual surplus

241,807 389,813

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (56,315) (65,985)
Proceeds on disposition of tangible capital assets - 225,245

Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets 746 (186,241)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 46,966 43,163
Change in prepaid expenditures {4,956) (1,650
228,248 404,345

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, end of year $ 1,433,696 $ 1,205,448

{See accompanying notes)
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THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 202t 2020
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 1 1)
REVENUE
Government grants - provincial $ 68,831 $ 68,831 $ 68,831
Municipal levies - operating 1,003,994 1,003,994 1,003,994
Recoveries - property taxes 24,420 24,253 24,839
Municipal levies - capital 49,053 49,053 -
Legal enquiries, fill permits and plan review 171,000 337,172 242,586
Sundry - note 8 102,500 128,658 64,591
Property rental 29,636 27,386 28,223
Donations - unrestricted 86,023 3,634 2,238
Deferred contributions recognized - 56,647 30,261
Source Protection RMO/RMI and E&O programs 122,120 128,999 131,099
Recovered from partnership programs - note 10 257,250 271,870 267,889
Government grants - summer students 16,000 11,400 4,480
Government assistance - - 25,000
1,930,827 2,117,897 1,894,031
EXPENDITURES
Corporate Services, Schedule 1 662,673 600,308 560,282
Watershed Science and Services, Schedule 2 932,314 908,003 812,605
Conservation Lands, Schedule 3 346,363 320,067 295,409
1,941,350 1,828,378 1,668,296
Annual Surplus before capital items (10,523) 289,519 225,735
CAPITAL ITEMS
Amortization - (46,966) (43,163)
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets - (746) 186,241
Land donations - - 21,000
- (47,712) 164,078
ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT) $ (10,523) $ 241,807 $ 389,813

(See accompanying notes)
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AUTHORITY

SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

SCHEDULE OF CORPORATE SERVICES Schedule 1
2021 2021 2020
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 11)

Wages and benefits $ 510,923 $ 517,421 $ 457,686
Travel and allowances 15,000 9,720 9,026
Equipment purchases and rental 2,500 - 855
Materials and supplies 12,250 7,138 12,237
Building occupancy costs 25,000 20,295 17,773
General 97,000 69,109 88,113
Less: internal charge for supervision and overhead - (23,375 (25,408)
$ 662673 $ 600,308 $ 560,282

SCHEDULE OF WATERSHED SCIENCE AND SERVICES

Schedule 2
2021 2020
Actual Actual

$ 601,045 $ 564,819

3,880 2,596
3,534 3,285
13,473 4,242
3,922 4,693
1,250 2,500

: 5
9,946 740
23,946 48,571
- 418
55,107 29,129
62,837 20,870
129,063 130,737

2021
Budget
(Note 11}

Wages and benefits $ 655,794
Travel and allowances 5,000
Materials, equipment and supplies 5,000
Office 8,000
Vehicle and equipment - operations and maintenance 8,000
Oak Ridges Moraine Coalition 2,500

Groundwater monitoring network .
Benthic/flow monitoring 39,000
Flood forecasting and control structures 37,300
Events and publications 7,500
Education and outreach programs 19,600
Stewardship programs 22,500
Source Protection RMO/RMI and E&O programs 122,120
$ 932,314

(See accompanying notes)

$ 008,003 $ 812,605
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THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

SCHEDULE OF CONSERVATION LANDS

Wages and benefits

Travel and allowances

General maintenance

Property taxes

Insurance

Workshop costs

Goodrich-Loomis Conservation Centre operations
Vehicle and equipment operations and maintenance
Vehicle and equipment lease/purchase

Schedule 3
2021 2021 2020
Budget Actual Actual
{Note 11)
$ 231,837 $ 205,283 $ 187,991
1,600 1,966 421
18,500 16,802 14,297
46,526 43,257 44,470
15,900 16,669 14,424
10,000 9,538 7,754
7,000 6,971 7,747
15,000 19,581 17,802
- - 503
$ 346,363 $ 320,067 $ 265409

{See accompanying notes)
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THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Schedule 4
Flood and
Buildings, Erosion Roads,
structures Control parking lots  Furnilure Office Computer 2021 2020
Land and bridges infrastructure  and trails  and fitures Equipment equipment Vehicles Equipment  Total Total
Historical Costs: $ $ 3 $ $ $ $ $ $ 3 $
Opening Balance 2,117,404 832,062 273,182 134,797 39,578 70,924 39,021 200,667 77,548 3,785,133 3,758,152
Additions - 12,335 40,704 - - - - - 3,276 56,315 65,985
Disposals (748) - - - - - - - - (746)  (39,004)

Clesing Balance 2,116,658 844,397 313,836 134,797 39,578 70,924 39,021 200,667 80,824 3,840,702 3,785,133

Accumulated Amortization:

Opening Balance - 304,210 166,857 41,297 37,005 57,552 36,592 140,802 65,385 849,700 806,537
Amortization - 13,273 3,420 2,338 514 2,675 728 17,960 6,058 46,966 43,163
Effects of Disposals - - - - - - - - - - -

Closing Balance - 317,483 170,277 43,635 37,519 60,227 37,320 158,762 71,443 896,666 849,700

Net book value for year

ended December 31,2021 2,116,658 526,914 143,559 91,162 2,059 10,697 1,701 41,905 9,381 2,944,036 2,935,433

(See accompanying notes)
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THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Annual surplus
Adjustments for:
Amortization
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets
Land donation

Change in non-cash operating balances:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenditures
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Due to partnership programs
Deferred contributions

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS
Purchase of tangible capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING TRANSACTIONS
Purchase of short-term investment

INCREASE IN CASH
CASH, beginning of year

CASH, end of year

{See accompanying notes)

2021 2020
$ 241,807 $ 389,813
46,966 43,163
746 (186,241)
- (21,000)
289,519 225,735
47,432 (42,693)
(4,956) (1,650)
(7,815) 20,765
(10,428) 25,500
218,553 (206,267)
(50,905) 126,702
481,400 148,092
(56,315) (44,985)
] 225,245
(56,315) 180,260
(59) (289)
425,026 328,063
1,601,148 1,273,085
$2,026,174  $1,601,148

10
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THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Lower Trent Region Conservation Authority (“the Authority”) is established under the
Conservation Authorities Act of Ontario to further the conservation, restoration, development
and management of natural resources, other than gas, oil, coal and minerals, for the watersheds
within its area of jurisdiction. The watersheds include areas in the Municipalities of Centre
Hastings, Trent Hills and Brighton, the Townships of Alnwick/Haldimand, Cramahe and
Stirling-Rawdon, and the City of Quinte West.

The Authority is a registered charity and is exempt from income taxes.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Authority follows Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards as issued by the Public
Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) in preparing its financial statements. The significant
accounting policies used are as follows:

Basis of accounting

Revenue and expenditures are recorded on the accrual basis, whereby they are reflected in the
accounts in the year in which they have been earned and incurred, respectively, whether or not
such transactions have been settled by the receipt or payment of money.

Appropriations to reserves

Authorities may establish reserves by appropriating amounts to earmark them for specific
purposes. Appropriations to or from reserves are reported on the statement of surplus as
appropriations from or to surplus.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and are classified
according to their functional use. Amortization is recorded on a declining balance basis
commencing in the year the asset is put into service. Donated tangible capital assets are reported
at fair value at the time of donation. Amortization rates are as follows:

Buildings, structures and bridges 2.5%
Flood and erosion control

infrastructure 2.5%
Roads, parking lots and trails 2.5%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Equipment 20%
Office equipment 30%
Vehicles 30%

Computer equipment 30to 45%

11
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THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

The Authority recognizes revenue as follows:

Municipal levies - general are recognized in the fiscal year in which they are levied.

The Provincial government annual operating grant is recognized in the fiscal year to which the
grant relates to the extent that eligible expenditures have been incurred.

User fees and sales are recognized when the service has been performed or the goods have been
transferred.

Other grants and specified donations are recognized when the related net expenditures have been
incurred.

Property rental income is recognized over the lease term.

General donations are recognized when received.

Any funding received for which the related services have not been performed and/or the related
expenditures have not been incurred at the'end of the fiscal year are recorded as unearned
revenue.

Investments

Investments are measured at acquisition cost.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting

period. Items requiring the use of significant estimates include determining the estimated useful
lives of tangible capital assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Liability for contaminated sites

A contaminated site is a site at which substances occur, in concentrations that exceed the
maximum acceptable amounts under an environmental standard. Sites that are currently in
productive use are only considered a contaminated sites if an unexpected event results in
contamination. A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized when the
Authority is directly responsible or accepts responsibility, it is expected that future economic
benefits will be given up and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. The liability
includes all costs directly attributable to remediation activities including post remediation
operations, maintenance and monitoring. The liability is recorded net of any expected
recoveries. These statements do not include any liability for contaminated sites.

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

The short term investment consists of a T-Bill mutual fund and includes $15,884 (2020 -
$15,870) which is restricted in use for the Shell Canada project described in Note 4. The market
value of the investment is equivalent to its cost.

DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS

2021 2020
Balance, beginning of year $ 258,650 $ 131,948
Contributions received in year 5,727 156,891
Interest earned 15 72
Expended in year (56,647) (30,261)
Balance, end of year $ 207,745 $ 258,650
Deferred contribution balance includes the following items:

2021 2020
Shell Canada $ 1584 $ 15870
Youth Education Programs and Fundraising Initiative 191,861 242,780

$ 207,745 $ 258,650

The Authority received contributions in a prior year from Shell Canada that are restricted in their
use towards capital improvements at the Goodrich-Loomis Conservation Centre.

The Authority received contributions during the year from various donors that are restricted in
their use towards Youth Education Programs and Fundraising Initiative.

i3
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THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

DUE TO PARTNERSHIP PROGRAMS

The Authority has been engaged to manage and administer various non-authority programs on
behalf of partners. This includes hiring and supervising the employees of these programs as well
as providing technical and administrative support. The Authority is advanced funds to cover the
expenditures of these programs. Separate bank accounts are not maintained for these programs.
At December 31, 2021 the Authority had the following amounts payable to these programs and
funds received and expended for these programs.

Amount
payable Amount
(recoverable) Funds payable
beginning of  received in (recoverable)
year year Expenditures  end of year
Bay of Quinte Governance $ (19,629) $ 370,250 $ 228,476 $ 122,145
Bay of Quinte Natural Heritage 109,852 249,679 233,509 126,022
Bay of Quinte Remedial Action
Plan - total 90,223 619,929 461,985 248,167
Source Water Protection 34,717 764,779 704,170 95,326

$ 124940  $1384,708 $1,166,155 § 343,493

The Authority is the signatory to funding contracts with the Federal and Ontario governments for
the above noted programs. Under these contracts, there are periodic submissions of financial
reports and reconciliation of expenditures incurred to the funding provided for the contract
period. Funding received in excess of eligible expenditures may have to be returned to the
funding government.

OPERATING FUND

The activity during the year in the operating fund is as follows:

2021 2020
Balance, beginning of year $ 607,890 § 493,140
Increase in net financial assets 228,249 404,345
Increase (decrease) in prepaid expenditures 4,956 1,650
Appropriations to reserves (49,054) (291,245)
Appropriations from reserves 15,611 -
Balance, end of year $ 807,652 $ 607,890

14



Page 69

THE LOWER TRENT REGION CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

RESERVE FUNDS

Appropriations to or from the reserve for administration facility, reserve for equipment, reserve
for special projects, reserve for workshop facility, reserve for conservation lands, reserve for
legal fees and reserve for youth education are specific decisions of the Authority's Board of
Directors. The Provincial land reserve consists of funds received from sales of lands that are
restricted in purpose to the purchase of provincially significant conservation lands, flood
operations, flood control structures or hazard land mapping and require provincial approval. The
activity in the various reserve funds during the year are as follows:

Balance Appropriation Appropriation
beginning of from to Balance end
year Qperations Operations of year
Reserve for buildings,
structures, and bridges $ 80,481 $ 16,000 $ 12335 $ 84,146
Reserve for vehicles and
equipment 103,556 15,275 - 118,831
Reserve for special projects 62,675 1,840 - 64,515
Reserve for conservation lands 15,000 - - 15,000
Reserve for legal fees 60,000 - - 60,000
Reserve for youth education 43113 - - 43,113
Provincial land reserve 225,245 - - 225,245
Reserve for IT infrastructure 24,000 6,000 3,276 26,724
Reserve for land infrastructure - 9,938 - 9,938

$ 614070 $ 49,053 § 15611 $ 647,512

During the year, the Authority consolidated the reserve for administration facility and workshop
facility into the reserve for buildings, structures and bridges and created the reserve for IT
infrastructure allocating $24,000 from the reserve for vehicles and equipment. Opening
balances above reflect these changes.

Appropriations . from operations represent the capital levy approved in the year and

appropriations to operations relate to actual spending on items approved in the capital asset
management plan.

15
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SUNDRY

Sundry revenue consists of the following:
2021 Budget 2021 2020
(Note 11) Actual Actual

Tree seedling and native potted plant program  $ 22,500 $§ 28580 $ 27,179

Stewardship programs and other projects 20,000 47,665 26,262

Interest 10,000 8,890 11,150
Warkworth Dam 50,000 39,948 -
Rebates and recoveries - 3,575 =

$ 102500 $ 128,658 § 64,591

Sundry revenue includes $39,937 (2020 - $12,704) related to special projects that were
recognized from special levies to the benefitting municipalities.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Authority received donations totalling $6,861 of which $3,223 were
restricted in use and have been included in deferred contributions (see note 4) and $3,638 is
included as donations - unrestricted on the statement of operations.

RECOVERIES FROM PARTNERSHIP PROGRAMS

Recoveries from partnership programs are amounts recovered from the programs described in
note 5 and include recovery of wages and benefits of general Authority employees, office space
and automotive equipment rental and overhead costs. The amounts charged to the programs are
as follows:

2021 2020
Bay of Quinte Remedial Action Plan $ 130,136 $ 122,743
Source Water Protection 147,734 145,146

$ 277870 $ 267,889
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BUDGET AMOUNTS

The budget amounts presented are as approved by the Board of Directors on December 10, 2020.
This includes both the operating budget and the capital budget. The operating budget included
$1,831,774 of revenue and $1,941,350 of expenditures for a deficit of $109,576. The capital
budget included $99,053 of revenue with projected capital expenditures of $142,500 for the
current year. The Authority does not budget for amortization.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Authority's financial instruments consist of cash, short term investment, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to partnership programs. Unless otherwise
noted, it is management's opinion that the Authority is not exposed to significant interest rate,
currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments.

The fair value of the financial instruments, excluding short term investment, approximate their
carrying values because of their expected short-term maturities and treatments on normal trade
terms. The fair value of the short term investment approximates its carrying value as the
investment is in a T-bill fund for which the quoted price does not vary.

EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT
2021 2020
Salaries and benefits $ 1,385,000 $ 1,366,617
Operating goods and services 443,378 301,679
$1,828,378  $1,668,296

PENSION AGREEMENTS

The Authority makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of the members of its staff. This plan is a
defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the
employees based on the length of service and rates of pay. Contributions are split equally
between the employees and the Authority.

The Authority's share of contributions to OMERS for 2021 was $125,447 (2020 - $126,548) for
current service costs and is included in the statement of operations.

The OMERS plan has a reported $3.2 billion actuarial deficit at the end of 2020 (2019 - $3.4

billion), and $113.1 billion of actuarial liabilities at the end of 2020 (2019 - $107.7 billion).
Amounts for 2021 are not yet available.
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UNCERTAINTY DUE TO THE ECONOMIC CONSEQUENCES OF THE
CORONAVIRUS DISEASE (COVID-19) OUTBREAK

In mid-March of 2020, the province of Ontario declared a state of emergency in response to the
public health concern originating from the spread of the coronavirus disease.

A high degree of uncertainty persists surrounding the full economic impact of the situation. The

unpredictable nature of the spread of the disease makes it difficult to determine any long-term
impact on the Authority's financial position and operations.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified from those previously presented to conform to
the presentation of the 2021 financial statements,
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STAFF REPORT

Date: January 26, 2022

LM. To: Board of Directors
Re:

Warkworth Dam — WECI Application 2022
LOWER TRENT Prepared by: Janet Noyes, Manager — Development Services and Water
CONSERVATION Resources

PROPOSED RESOLUTION:

THAT the Board supports staff moving forward to access available funds from the Water and Erosion Control
Infrastructure (WECI) program through the Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural Resources and
Forestry for required work for Warkworth Dam.

BACKGROUND:

In March 2020, the LTC Board of Directors accepted and approved the three reports prepared by DM Wills for
the Warkworth Dam: Warkworth Dam Safety Review Update (DSR — July 2019); Public Safety Risk Assessment
(PSRA — February 2019) and Emergency Preparedness Plan (EPP- October 2019). Funding for these studies was
obtained through the Province’s Water and Erosion Control Infrastructure (WECI) program which requires a
commitment from benefitting Municipality for 50% of the funding of the project (in this case Trent Hills).

The recommendations from the DSR and PSRA are summarized and shown in the Table below with a
high/medium/low prioritization and the associated estimate costs. Completed items are shaded green and
recommended items to be addressed next in orange.

Category \ Recommendation | Priority | Estimate
Civil/ Structural
Replacing Log Lifting System High/Medium S10K - S40K
Replace missing bars in railing on Dam Deck High S5K
Low Flow Pipe/ Concrete Work High/Medium $2.5K (high)
(Pipe); Low S15K (med)
(Concrete) S100K (low)
Geotechnical
Earth Embankment Erosion Review High $7.5K
Vegetation Removal around dam abutments Medium $10K
Repair slumping in pond area Low S5K
Dam Safety Management
Routine Dam Inspections Low SO
Annual Dam Inspections Low SO
Special Dam Inspections Low SO
OMS Manual Medium S10K
EPP Medium S10K
DSR Update Low S100K
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Public Safety Risk Assessment
Signage Medium S16K
Deck Gates / Floodway Railings Medium $15K
Communications Medium $2.5

As discussed with the Board in 2020, a stepped approach with regards to the recommendations from the reports
is to be undertaken. The upgraded log lifting system and the earthen embankment erosion review were
completed in FY 2020/2021 with funding from WECI and Trent Hills.

With the installation of the new overhead gantry system last year an updated Operation, Maintenance,
Surveillance and Safety Manual (OMS) is recommended. The OMS had been identified as a medium priority in
the DSR as the existing manual does not meet the minimum requirement for dam safety and the installation of
the new gantry system requires updates as well. General quotes of $8K to $10K to complete the OMS were
obtained last year. LTC staff are recommending this item for completion this year.

LTC are also recommending the replacement of all 22 stop logs for the Warkworth Dam. In 2011 10 of the logs
were replaced but we have no record of the age of the remaining 12 logs. Continual leaking between the logs
concerns Trent Hills staff and residents of the area due to inconsistent pond levels especially during low flow
conditions. Consultation with other dam owners indicates log replacement is recommended every 10 years. A
supplier quote of $S27K to replace logs and have them delivered to Warkworth was obtained last year.

LTC staff attended a Trent Hills Council Meeting on January 26, 2022 to request support for the WECI funding
application. Trent Hills Council supported the submissions with a resolution to provide matching funding on a
50/50 cost basis. LTC is requesting total funding of $34,000 (58,000 for OMS and $27,000 for new logs).
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STAFF REPORT

Date: January 28, 2022

To: Board of Directors

Re: Proposed Update to LTC Regulation 163/06 Policy
Document

Prepared by: Janet Noyes, Manager, Dev. Services & Water Resources

PROPOSED RESOLUTION:
THAT the proposed revisions and updates to the LTC Regulation 163/06 Policy Document, dated February 10,
2022 be adopted.

BACKGROUND:

Lower Trent Conservation Board of Directors approved the Ontario Regulation 163/06 Policy Document
through Resolution G67/16 on May 12, 2016. The document was updated in 2017 to clarify some policies and
technical appendices and these revisions were approved by the Board of Director on April 13, 2017 through
Resolution G44/17. In 2018 further revisions for clarity and legislative updates were necessary and through
Resolution G131/18, the Board of Directors approved these updates.

Lower Trent Conservation staff have been working with the approved document since that time and have
identified other areas where legislation changes have necessitated revisions, clarification is required, and

general improvements could be made. LTC staff have been waiting for the “Updated Regulations” that are
pending from the Ontario government but a timeline for issuance of these regulations is unknown.

As of January 1, 2022, O. Reg. 686/21 is in effect and some definitions have been legislated to be changed.
These latest updates have been incorporated into the amended document. For these reasons, LTC staff have
revised the existing document to correlate to the changing legislation as best as possible at this time.

Rather than listing each individual modification, LTC staff have included a “track-changes” version of the
document for review by the LTC Board of Directors. Some minor typographical errors have been corrected in
the document as well as references to updated legislation while clarification in other areas to aid in the review
and processing of permit applications

Below is a list of the revisions being proposed to clarify a policy or better describe how the policy is applied. A
few definitions have been updated to clarify conditions and more consistent applicability.

GENERAL MODIFCATIONS AND UPDATES ARE LISTED BELOW:

e References to the Provincial Policy Statement have been updated to reflect the 2020 version (PPS 2020).

e References of Local Planning Appeals Tribunal (LPAT) now updated to Ontario Land Tribunal (OLT) throughout
the document.

o Updated name of Ministry from Natural Resources and Forestry (MNRF) to Northern Development, Mines,
Natural Resources and Forestry (NDMNRF) throughout the document.

e NEW Appendices Included:
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Appendix J — Ontario Regulation 686/21
Appendix K — Little Lake Flood Hazard Information

© O O

Appendix L — Two-Zone No Fill Mapping

0 Appendix M —Watercourse Realignment Checklist

e Update Appendix H - Updates to the Hearing Guidelines to incorporate Hearings for Ministers Zoning Orders
(MZOs) have also been included in Appendix H — Hearing Guidelines. These updates have been based on a
Template provided by Conservation Ontario (September 2021). These amendments were made to incorporate
hearings under 28.0.1 Conservation Ontario Council Conservation Ontario Council and update references to the
Ontario Land Tribunal (OLT).

e NEW Definitions Include:

0 Major and Moderate Stabilization works to be applied to both Lake Ontario shoreline and riverine bank
systems to provide more flexibility to applicants for erosion protection works. Moderate stabilization
works will not require engineered design.

0 New definition of wetlands as per O. Reg. 686/21 has been included and LTC notes that the requirement
for hydrologic connection to a surface water body has been removed as one of the tests for a wetland.
Requirements are now hydric soils, hydrophytic plants and high groundwater levels.

0 New definitions for Flood Hazard, Erosion Hazard, Hazard Lands and Hazardous Sites are now applicable
to the Conservation Authorities Act and Regulations under the Act. These have been updated
throughout the policy document and in the glossary as well.

e Updated Definition of Boathouse so there is more flexibility for applicants (no size restrictions and no peaked
roof requirements).

e Section 1.1. Included discussion of the expanded LTC jurisdiction in Trent Hills and provided documentation of
these changes in Appendix H.

e NEW Section 1.3. Notes about provincial ministry name changes

e Section 1.4.1. Discussion of further pending changes to Conservation Authorities Act and pending regulations
updates which will require future updates to this document.

e NEW Section 1.4.2. — Background on new Section 28.0.1. in Conservation Authorities Act requiring Conservation
Authorities to issue permits to applications under Ministers Zoning Orders (MZO).

e Section 1.4.3. Added discussion of Hydro One Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) as these applications no
long have exemptions under the Conservation Authorities Act.

e NEW Section 1.4.6. to introduce Ontario Regulation 686/21 - Mandatory Programs and Services under the
Conservation Authorities Act. This regulation came into effect on January 1, 2022, and updates definitions for
natural hazards to be used in conjunction with permits issued by Conservation Authorities.

e Section 1.5.1. discussion of changes to Conservation Authority appeal powers with respect to the Planning Act as
a result of Bill 229 in December 2020.

e Section 1.6.1. updated definitions from the Conservation Authorities Act as required by O. Reg. 686/21.

e Section 1.9.1. updated Lake Ontario Shoreline Management Plan information to reference Zuzek Report (2020)
and updated Lake Ontario flood elevations. Also updated to include reference to Bay of Quinte Flood Hazard
updates by SJL Engineering (2020).

e Section 1.9.2. updated to include LTC analysis of flood hazard for Little Lake in Cramahe.

e NEW Section 2.5.3. allowing engineered design beach curbs to be installed at the dynamic beach boundary as
we have a number of requests for this type of protection that has been supported by coastal engineer design in
the past.



Agenda Item #23 Page 77

e NEW Section 4.2.2.4) clarifying requirements for building additions outside of flood hazard but main building is
located within the hazard.

e NEW Section 5.2.1.1. 15) allowing for addition to building outside of second storey addition in the flood hazard
(greater than 500 ft2) with no increase in building footprint and no increase in habitation. Allows more flexibility
for staff to approve as we have had a few hearings for these circumstances, which have been approved by the
Board.

e Section 5.2.1.2. 12) clarification of works that can be completed within the NO Fill Zone of the Mayhew Creek
Flood Fringe which allows for redevelopment.

e NEW Section 5.2.1.2. 25) clarifying no setbacks from floodway required when developing within the flood fringe
in a Two-Zone.

e Section 6.2.1. 9) and 10) have been edited to clarify that small wetlands are considered to be < 0.5 ha in size for
consideration of potential development and required wetland compensation.

e Section 7.2.1. 7) reference to Watercourse Realignment Checklist (Appendix M) has been added to this policy to
clarify the requirements of application for realignment or other large alteration of a watercourse.

e Section 8.2.2. has been expanded to include the permit categories that have been endorsed by Conservation
Ontario Council and presented to the province in regards to reporting requirements for Conservation
Authorities. These categories are similar to the permit types outlined by LTC but clarity is provided regarding the
distinction between LTC permit types and required category reporting to the province.

e NEW Section 8.2.2.6. has been added to provide the definitions of the permit categories for reporting.

e NEW Section 8.2.5. to define the Client Service Facilitator as required in the Conservation Ontario’s Client
Service and Streamlining Initiative

e NEW Section 8.2.6. outlining the process for consideration of completeness of a permit application. Process for
requesting an Administrative Review for required components of a complete application are included in this
section to outline steps for applicants.

e Section 8.2.7. has been updated to reflect the Timeline requirements for permit applications following the
revised timelines that is outlined in the Annual Reporting on Timelines Template For permissions under Section
28 of the Conservation Authorities Act (CO ARTT), which received endorsement by the CO Council in December
2019.

e NEW Section 8.2.11. — Appeals to Minister - has been included to outline the procedure an applicant can take to
appeal a decision by LTC regarding a permit application within various steps of the permit process. Timelines for
appeal to be initiated are also included.

e Section 8.2.12. — Appeals to OLT — has been significantly updated to reflect the appeal process the applicant may
undertake during the permit review process. Timelines for appeal to be initiated are also included.
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1 INTRODUCTION

This is the Policy Document for Ontario Regulation 163/06: Lower Trent Region Conservation Authority:
Regulation of Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines and
Watercourses. Within this document the Lower Trent Region Conservation Authority is referred to as
Lower Trent Conservation or LTC. O.Reg. 163/06 is a Regulation that was enacted in 2006 by the
Minister of Natural Resources under the Conservation Authorities Act, R.S.0. 1990, c. C.27.

1.1 Organization of This Document

The first section of this document is the introduction which includes the objective, discussion about
relevant legislation, some legislative definitions and references to technical studies identifying hazards
in the Lower Trent Conservation watershed. The next 5 sections of this document are organized
according to the areas/features regulated under Section 28 of the Conservation Authorities Act:

Section 2.0 — General Policies
Section 3.0 - Great Lakes and Large Inland Lakes Shorelines
Section 4.0 - River or Stream Valleys

Section 5.0 - Hazardous Lands (Flood, Erosion, Dynamic Beach, Unstable Soil and Unstable
Bedrock)

Section 6.0 — Wetlands
Section 7.0 - Watercourses

Each of these sections is intended to be self-contained while minimizing repetition in the guidelines and
all should be read in conjunction with Section 1.0 Introduction. It should be noted that more than one
type of regulated feature may exist for a given property and application, and as such, reference must be
made to all relevant sections and the policies must be applied concurrently. In preparing this document,
technical publications have been summarized and as such, staff are encouraged to consult the original
documents.

It should be noted that although there are Hazardous Lands (flood, erosion and dynamic beach hazards)
associated with Great Lakes and Inland Lakes Shorelines, we have included all shoreline hazardous lands
in Section 3.0.

In general, each section provides:
* the relevant excerpts from the LTC Regulation shown in a grey box; and
* policy standards for implementing the LTC Regulation.

These suggested policy guidelines follow a format similar to the Conservation Authorities Act, Ontario
Regulation 97/04 (the generic regulation) and the LTC individual CA Regulations, Ontario Regulation
163/06. That is, the policies address both the “Development Prohibited” and the “Permission to
Develop” requirements of the legislation. The language used in the policies is “shall not be permitted” to
reflect the prohibition language while the “may permit” caveat is provided because, consistent with the
legislation, there is an expectation that LTC may grant “Permission to Develop”, if “in its opinion”, the
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five tests, where applicable, are satisfied (i.e., “the control of flooding, erosion, dynamic beaches,
pollution, or the conservation of land will not be affected”).

Additionally, the “development” policies are complementary to the Natural Heritage (Section 2.1) and
Natural Hazard (Section 3.1) policies within the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS 2020). For example, the
natural heritage policies 2.1.4 and 2.1.5, which encompass certain wetlands and valleylands, indicate
that “Development and site alteration shall not be permitted...unless it has been demonstrated that ....”.
Additionally, the natural hazard policies (Section 3.1) state that “Development or site alteration shall
generally be directed to areas outside of ....” or that it “shall not be permitted” (i.e. in a land use
planning context) while in other policies recognizing that “further to ...... development and site alteration
may be permitted...”.

Section 8.0 — Procedure for Applications under O.Reg. 163/06

Section 9.0 - Glossary (It provides definitions for the purpose of interpreting and implementing
the development policy.)

General Technical Guidelines that provide background information on defining the area of regulation are
included in Appendix A. Lower Trent Conservation’s jurisdiction to apply the regulation is defined by our
Orders in Council, which can be found in Appendix H. In 2018, Lower Trent Conservation and the
Municipality of Trent Hills worked together on the expansion of LTC's jurisdiction in the north section of
Trent Hills. This resolution was acknowledged by the province in early 2019. Documentation of this
expansion is also included in Appendix H.

1.2 Objective

The objective of this document is to provide policy guidelines to assist the Lower Trent Region
Conservation Authority (LTC) in interpreting and implementing the Conservation Authorities Act, Section
28 (1) Regulations (i.e. Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines and
Watercourses Regulations).

The overall approach of this document is to provide for a consistent policy interpretation and
implementation across the watershed by staff.

1.3 Notes Regarding Ontario Ministry Names

Provincial Ministries have gone through a number of name modifications due to changes in political
ideology or focus. In the following document references to the current version of the Ministry label have
been made but in referencing certain publications by these ministries under previous names, the
previous name or acronym associated with the publication at that time is used.

Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) (2018 to present) was previously known as
Ministry of the Environment (MOE), (1972 — 1993, 1998 -2014), Ministry of Environment and Energy
(MOEE) (1993 —1997) and the Ministry of Environment and Climate Change (MOECC) (2014 — 2018).

The Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry (NDMNRF) (2021—
present) was previously known as the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (MNRF) (2014-2021)
and Ministry of Natural Resources (MNR) (1997 — 2014).

The Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA) has held this name since 1994. Prior to
that it was known as the Ministry of Agriculture and Food (1972-1994).
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The Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing (MMAH) has existed since 1981 but Housing and
Municipal Affairs were separate ministries for short periods in this time frame (1985-1989 and 1991-

1995).

1:31.4 Overview of Legislative Framework

1341.4.1 Conservation Authorities Act
The Conservation Authorities Act (CAA) was created in 1946 in response to erosion and drought
concerns, recognizing that these and other natural resource initiatives are best managed on a
watershed basis.

In 1956, in response to the severe economic and human losses associated with Hurricane Hazel
(1954), amendments to the Conservation Authorities Act first empowered a Conservation
Authority (CA) to make Regulations to prohibit filling in floodplains. These Regulations were
broadened in 1960 to prohibit or regulate the placing or dumping of fill in defined areas where,
in the opinion of the CA, the control of flooding, pollution or the conservation of land may be
affected. In 1968, amendments to the Conservation Authorities Act further extended the
Regulations to prohibit or control construction and alteration to waterways, in addition to filling.

In 1998, the Conservation Authorities Act was amended as part of the Red Tape Reduction Act
(Bill 25), to ensure that Regulations under the Act were consistent across the province and
complementary to provincial policies. Significant revisions were made to Section 28, which led
to the replacement of the “Fill, Construction and Alteration to Waterways” Regulation with the
current “Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines and
Watercourses” Regulation_in 2006. While some CAs have been regulating wetlands, shorelines
and inter-connecting channels for years, the amendments required all CAs to regulate Great
Lakes shorelines, inter-connecting channels?, large inland lakes and wetlands in addition to the
areas and features each CA historically regulated.

Section 28 of the Conservation Authorities Act, as provided in Appendix B, includes the following
section:

28. (1) Subject to the approval of the Minister, an authority may make regulations
applicable in the area under its jurisdiction

(a) restricting and regulating the use of water in or from rivers, streams, inland
lakes, ponds, wetlands and natural or artificially constructed depressions in
rivers or streams;

(b) prohibiting, regulating or requiring the permission of the authority for
straightening, changing, diverting or interfering in any way with the existing
channel of a river, creek, stream or watercourse, or for changing or interfering
in any way with a wetland;

L With the exception of the Niagara River which is governed federally for hydro production at Niagara
Falls.
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(c) prohibiting, regulating or requiring the permission of the authority for
development if, in the opinion of the authority, the control of flooding, erosion,
dynamic beaches or pollution or the conservation of land may be affected by
the development;

(d) providing for the appointment of officers to enforce any regulation made under
this section or section 29;

(e) providing for the appointment of persons to act as officers with all of the
powers and duties of officers to enforce any regulation made under this section.

Section 28 (1)(a) was not enacted under Ontario Regulation 97/04 because of the overlap and
potential confusion with the Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks-ard-Climate
Change’s Ontario Water Resources Act and related regulations (i.e. Permits to Take Water).

There is a proposed new Section 28 in the CAA that has not yet been proclaimed. The new
wording has been included in the CAA Act in Appendix B for reference as greyed text boxes. At
the time that these changes are enacted, this Regulation Policy document will be required to be
updated to reflect the changes.

In 2018 the provincial government moved the oversight of the Conservation Authorities Act
from the NDMNRF to the MECP (and thus the name change for this ministry). However, the
Section 28 regulations are-stillcensideredremain under the authority of the NDMNRF as thatis
the Ministry overseeing natural hazards. Updated Section 28 regulations are pending and when
sueh-the updated regulations are released and approved by the Crown then these policies will
require updating-as-well.

1.4.2 Ministers Zoning Order — Permission for Development
In 2020 changes were made to the CAA and other legislation that aew-require Conservation
Authorities to issue permits when a zoning order has been made by the Minister of Municipal
Affairs and Housing under section 47 of the Planning Act. This authorizesing the development
project under theat Planning Act even if the proposal does not comply with other requirements
of the CAA. Ministerial Zoning Orders fall under Fhis-Ssection isaumbered-28.0.1 of the CAAin
the-Actand. Conservation Authorities cannot refuse to issue these permits under a Minister’s
Zoning Order but can require conditions to be placed on the permission.

Section 28.0.1 of the Conservation Authorities Act includes the following sections:

(1) This section applies to any application submitted to an authority under a regulation made
under subsection 28 (1) for permission to carry out all or part of a development project in the
authority’s area of jurisdiction if,

(a) _a zoning order has been made by the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing under
section 47 of the Planning Act authorizing the development project under that Act;

(b) the lands in the authority’s area of jurisdiction on which the development project is to
be carried out are not located in the Greenbelt Area designated under section 2 of the
Greenbelt Act, 2005; and

(c) such other requirements as may be prescribed are satisfied.
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(2) In this section, “development project” means a development project that includes any
development as defined in subsection 28 (25) or any other act or activity that would be
prohibited under this Act and the regulations unless permission to carry out the activity is
granted by the affected authority.

(3) Subject to the regulations made under subsection (35), an authority that receives an
application for permission to carry out all or part of a development project in the authority’s
area of jurisdiction shall grant the permission if all of the requirements in clauses (1) (a), (b) and

(c) are satisfied.

(4) For greater certainty, an authority shall not refuse to grant permission for a development
project under subsection (3) despite,

(a) anything in section 28 or in a regulation made under section 28; and
{a}—anything in subsection 3 (5) of the Planning Act.

(b)

Note that Hearings made be held to address Conditions that the Conservation Authority includes
with the Required Permission granted under this section of the Act if the applicant does not
agree with the Conditions. The Hearings Guidelines (Appendix G) have been updated to include
these types of procedures as well.

132143 Exceptions under the Conservation Authorities Act
Section 28 of the Conservation Authorities Act includes the following sections dealing with
exceptions:

(10) No regulation made under subsection (1),
(a) shall limit the use of water for domestic or livestock purposes;

(b) shall interfere with any rights or powers conferred upon a municipality in respect
of the use of water for municipal purposes;

(c) shall interfere with any rights or powers of any board or commission that is
performing its functions for or on behalf of the Government of Ontario; or

(d) shall interfere with any rights or powers under the Electricity Act, 1998 or the
Public Utilities Act, 1998.

(11) A requirement for permission of an authority in a regulation made under clause (1) (b) or (c)
does not apply to an activity approved under the Aggregate Resources Act after the Red Tape
Reduction Act, 1998 received Royal Assent.

While Section 28 (11) provides an exemption to the requirement for a CA’s permission, Section
28 (10) does not. As such, a proponent is still required to obtain permission from a CA for any
development within a regulated area or interference to a wetland or watercourse associated
with the items listed in Section 28 (10). However, a CA must ensure their Regulation and policies
do not limit the uses or interfere with the rights or powers listed in Section 28 (10). This allows
a CA to ensure that there is no interference with a wetland or watercourse or the interference is
minimized to the extent possible and that the control of flooding, erosion, dynamic beaches or
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pollution or the conservation of land are either not affected by the development or the impacts
are minimized to the extent possible.

Additionally, it is noted that the Conservation Authorities Act does not contain a subsection that
specifically “binds the Crown”. FhereforeTherefore, activities of Provincial Ministries, Federal
Departments and Crown Agencies or “Crown Corporations” are not bound by the Act and these
entities are not legally required to obtain permission under the Conservation Authorities Act.
The same is true for proponents proposing to undertake activities entirely on Crown Land.
Voluntary compliance with the review process requirement is always a possibility for the Crowns
and their Agencies. Through their policies, the CAs may invite them to voluntarily submit
proposals for works through the permit review process. Although best practice would suggest
that they comply to ensure a sufficient technical review of their activity, they are within their
legal rights to refuse to participate in the voluntary review process. Typically projects by the
Crown on Crown land do not require permission from LTC. However, projects by private entities
on Crown Land do require permission through LTC.

In 2021 the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Conservation Ontario and Hydro
One Networks Inc. was updated (from original 2011 MOU) to address the reduced public
ownership of the company. T-se-their status as a Crown Corporation was no longer validheld and
exemptions provided under the CAA are no longert applicable. Therefore, activities by Hydro
One rew require permits from LTC. Please reference the “2021 Memorandum of Understanding
between Conservation Ontario and Hydro One Networks Inc.” endorsed by Conservation Ontario
Council on June 21, 2021 and by Hydro One Networks on July 19, 2021. Specific forms have been
developed for these permits and are available at the LTC Office.

1331.4.4 Ontario Regulation 97/04
Ontario Regulation 97/04 “Content of Conservation Authority Regulations under Subsection 28
(1) of the Act: Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines and
Watercourses” (i.e. Generic Regulation) was approved in May 2004 following a prescribed public
consultation process. A copy of Ontario Regulation 97/04 is provided in Appendix C. This
Regulation established the content requirements to be met in a Regulation made by a CA under
Subsection 28 (1) of the Conservation Authorities Act.

134145 LTC Section 28 Regulation, Ontario Regulation 163/06
In 2006, the Minister of Natural Resources approved the Development, Interference and
Alteration Regulations (individual CA Regulations) for all CAs consistent with Ontario Regulation
97/04 of the Conservation Authorities Act. LTC's Regulation is identified as Ontario Regulations
163/06 and is provided in Appendix D. LTC regulates all components noted in Section 28(1) (b)
and (c) of the Act, within the area of its jurisdiction.

LTC regulates:

e development in river or stream valleys, wetlands, shorelines and hazardous lands and
associated allowances,

e the straightening, changing, diverting or interfering in any way with the existing channel
of ariver, creek, stream, watercourse or for changing or interfering in any way with a
wetland, and
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e other areas where, in the opinion of the Minister, development should be prohibited or
regulated or should require the permission of the authority.

It is not necessary to map a feature before it can be regulated. The legal basis for defining
regulated areas remains with the written text. While the LTC Regulation refers to maps which
approximate regulation limits (and may be subject to revision), the text of the Regulation
prevails. The Guidelines for Developing Schedules of Regulated Areas (MNR and CO, 2005)
identify the requirements for the preparation of maps and/or revisions to existing maps.
Detailed studies requested at the time of an application may further refine or delineate the
regulated features (e.g., hazardous lands).

Board-approved €A-policies provide a decision-making framework for the review of applications
under the Regulation. In general, policies ensure a consistent, timely and fair approach to the
review of applications, staff recommendations, and Board decisions. They also facilitate the
effective and efficient use and allocation of available resources.

The hierarchy of legislation and policies described in this section is depicted in Figure 1 below.

Figure 1: Hierarchy of Legislation and Policies

Permit Approval Process

To receive permission for proposed works in regulated areas the proponent must submit a
permit application to LTC for approval prior to any works. A summary of the permit approval
process is outlined below and is discussed in further detail in Section 8 of this document.

e To receive permission for development, it must be demonstrated in an application to
the satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches
or the conservation of land will not be affected. The control of dynamic beaches is
applicable to the Lake Ontario shoreline.
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e To receive permission to interfere with a watercourse or wetland, it must be
demonstrated in an application to the satisfaction of LTC, that the interference on the
watercourse or wetland is acceptable in terms of the natural features and hydrologic
and ecological functions of the watercourse or wetland.

e To receive permission for development within “other areas” associated with wetlands, it
must be demonstrated in an application that interference on the hydrologic functions of
the wetland is deemed acceptable.

Permission from LTC will be given in the form of a formal permit and a letter of permission. For
any type of application, submission of technical studies may be necessary. These technical
studies must be carried out by a qualified professional with recognized expertise in the
appropriate discipline and must be prepared using established procedures and recognized
methodologies to the satisfaction of LTC. These established procedures should be in keeping
with NDMNRF’s Technical Guides for Natural Hazards (MNR, 2002a; MNR, 2002b; MNR, 1996a;
MNR, 1996b; and MNR 1996c), other Provincial guidelines and/or guidelines approved by the
LTC Board. LTC may request that technical studies be carried out at the expense of the
applicant.

Where technical expertise within LTC is not available, it may be requested that the study be
peer-reviewed by a qualified professional at the expense of the applicant.

1.4.6 _Mandatory Services and Programs O.Reg. 686/21
In October 2021, the provincial government defined the Mandatory Programs and Services to be
offered by Conservation Authorities in a new regulation under the CAA. This-rew-regulation
{0.Reg. 686/21) came into effect on January 1, 2022. Implications of this new regulation for THIS
policy document reflect changes to definitions to be used under the CAA and other associated
regulations. Specifically, the definitions in the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS 2020) are to be
used with respect to regulated area delineation. These new definitions are discussed in the PPS
Section below (Section 1.5.2.) and are included in Section 9.0 Glossary of this document.
Definitions in the CAA have been updated in this document (Section 1.6.1.) have been updated
with these changes as well. The Regulation has been included as Appendix J.

It should be noted that with the updated definitions Hazardous Sites have been separated from
Hazardous Lands. Although LTC’s Regulation O.Reg. 163/06 only refers to Hazardous Lands,
0O.Reg. 686/21 does note that an authority shall provide the programs and services for a list of
natural hazards that includes Hazardous Sites and Section 28 Regulations are included in the list
of programs and services. Therefore, Hazardous Sites are included as regulated features in this
policy document.

1:41.5 Other Related Legislation

It is important to note that the LTC Section 28 permission, if granted, does not exempt the applicant

from complying with any or all other approvals, laws, statutes, ordinances, directives and regulations
that may affect the property or the use of same. Alternatively, complying with or obtaining all other
approvals, laws, statutes, ordinances, directives and regulations, does not exempt the applicant from
obtaining permission under Section 28 of the Conservation Authorities Act.
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+411.5.1 Planning Act
LTC is also involved in the review of planning applications under the Planning Act primarily in
three-four ways: as an agency with delegated responsibilities for the review of natural hazards;
as a regulatory agency with respect to O.Reg. 163/06; as a technical advisor; and as a
commenting agency.

Ontario Regulation 163/06 is intended to be used in a manner that will complement the Natural
Hazard (Section 3.1), Natural Heritage (Section 2.1 — Wetlands and Valley Lands) and Water
(Section 2.2) policies of the 2644-2020 Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) under the Planning Act.
However, delegated responsibility for providing input with respect to provincial interests under
the PPS is limited to Section 3.1 — Natural Hazards. This delegation of responsibility requires LTC
to review and provide comments on policy documents (Official Plans and Comprehensive Zoning
By-laws) and applications submitted pursuant to the Planning Act as part of the Provincial One
Window Planning Service.

As noted in the Memorandum of Understanding on Procedures to Address CA Delegated
Responsibility (Appendix E), LTC may also provide a technical advisory service to our member
municipalities for planning applications. In this capacity, LTC staff provide technical input
regarding potential environmental impacts and advice about how negative impacts can be
avoided or minimized. Comments could apply to a range of matters including, but not limited to
natural hazards, natural heritage, and water quality and quantity as well as other Provincial
Plans such as the Oak Ridges Moraine Protection Plan and the Greater Golden Horseshoe
Growth Plan.

In addition, regulations under the Planning Act (O.Reg. 545/06, 543/06 and 200/96) require
municipalities to give notice to CAs regarding planning applications and changes to policy
documents. In its capacity as a commenting agency, LTC may provide additional advisory
comments that relate to its goals and objectives for watershed management.

One of the main differences between the PPS and the Development, Interference and Alteration
Regulations is that the Planning Act establishes the principle of development and the LTC
regulations, like a building permit, identify specific site requirements prior to activities taking
place. Prior to the review of a Regulation application, LTC will often see the proposal through
their Plan Review process including applications under the Planning Act (e.g., severances, site
plan, subdivision applications), and the Environmental Assessment Act. Although permission
may not be issued for many years after the planning application, LTC endeavours to ensure,
through its comments on the planning application, that the requirements under the Regulation
process can be fulfilled at the time an application under the Regulation is received.

If an application under the Planning Act does not meet the Board approved policies (for its
regulations), staff should work with the municipality and the proponent to modify the
application. As previously noted, the principle of development is established through the
Planning Act process. It is not acceptable to recommend approval of a planning application and
then recommend refusal of a regulatory permission, unless the applicant refuses to meet the
specific requirements under the Regulation. If an issue remains unresolved, LTC should not
recommend approval of the Planning Act application and assess the option of making an appeal
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to the Ontario Landtecal-Planrning-Appeat Tribunal (OLRAT). Note that Conservation Authorities
ability to appeal to the OLT regarding municipal decisions of planning act applications was
limited to appeals regarding Natural Hazards only with the approval of Bill 229 - An Act to
implement Budget measures and to enact, amend and repeal various statutes, in December
2020.

Alternatively, it is also recognized that there may be historic planning approval decisions that
were made in the absence of current technical information or prior to the establishment of the
current regulations and policies, which would now preclude development. In these situations,
innovative efforts may be necessary to address the site constraints and accommodate the
development. However, in some cases approval should not be granted.

1+421.5.2 Other Legislation
There are many other pieces of legislation that address various water and related resource
management activities. Some of the key pieces of legislation include:

e Fisheries Act (Fisheries and Oceans Canada): managing threats to the sustainability and
ongoing productivity of Canada's commercial, recreational and Aboriginal fisheries;

e Lakes and Rivers Improvement Act (NDMNRF): provides the Minister of Northern
Development, Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry with the legislative authority to
govern the design, construction, operation, maintenance and safety of dams in Ontario;

e  Public Lands Act (NDMNRF): the “rules” governing the administration of Crown land are laid
out in a provincial law known as the Public Lands Act;

e Environmental Assessment Act (MECP): requires an environmental assessment of any major
public sector undertaking that has the potential for significant environmental effects. This
includes public roads, transit, wastewater and stormwater installations;

e  Water Resources Act (MECP): designed to conserve, protect and manage Ontario's water
resources for efficient and sustainable use. The Act focuses on both groundwater and
surface water throughout the province; and

e Drainage Act (OMAFRAntario-Ministry-of-Agriculture,Food-and-Rural-Affairs): provides a
democratic procedure for the construction, improvement and maintenance of drainage
works.

1.51.6 Definitions and Interpretations

The following sections outline the key definitions and interpretations recommended for implementing
the Regulations. The Regulation allows LTC to prohibit or restrict development (as defined in the
Conservation Authorities Act) in areas where the control of flooding, erosion, dynamic beaches, pollution
or the conservation of land may be affected by development. The Regulation also allows for the
regulation of interference of watercourses and wetlands. The Conservation Authorities Act and the
Regulations do not provide definitions for many of these terms. Therefore, other relevant documents
were reviewed by the Conservation Ontario Peer Review Committee in 2006 to 2008 in an effort to
establish interpretations for those terms not defined in the Conservation Authorities Act. It is important
to note that where definitions are provided in the Conservation Authorities Act, these definitions (e.g.
“development”) prevail for the implementation of the Regulation, even if other definitions exist in other
relevant documents.

10
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The following definitions provided are essential for interpreting this document and as such are defined
in the next sections. Additional definitions of common terms and those used for implementation of this
document can be found in Section 79.0 (Glossary). Words found in the Glossary are italicized in the text.

15411.6.1 Conservation Authorities Act
Section 28 (25) of the Conservation Authorities Act provides the following definitions, some of
which have been updated pursuant to O.Reg. 686/21 to include definitions from the PPS 2020:

Development means:

(a) the construction, reconstruction, erection or placing of a building or structure of any
kind,

(b) any change to a building or structure that would have the effect of altering the use
or potential use of the building or structure, increasing the size of the building or
structure or increasing the number of dwelling units in the building or structure,

(c) site grading, or

(d) the temporary or permanent placing, dumping or removal of any material,
originating on the site or elsewhere

Hazardous Land (updated definition) means:

Property or lands that could be unsafe for development due to naturally occurring processes.
Along the shorelines of the Great Lakes - St. Lawrence River System, this means the land,
including that covered by water, between the international boundary, where applicable, and the
furthest landward limit of the flooding hazard, erosion hazard or dynamic beach hazard limits.
Along the shorelines of large inland lakes, this means the land, including that covered by water,
between a defined offshore distance or depth and the furthest landward limit of the flooding
hazard, erosion hazard or dynamic beach hazard limits. Along river, stream and small inland lake
systems, this means the land, including that covered by water, to the furthest landward limit of
the flooding hazard or erosion hazard limits.

Pollution means:

“...any deleterious physical substance or other contaminant that has the potential to be
generated by development in an area to which a regulation made under clause (1) (c)
applies”

Watercourse means:

“... an identifiable depression in the ground in which a flow of water regularly or
continuously occurs”

Wetland (updated definition) means:

{a}-Lands that are seasonally or permanently covered by shallow water, as well as lands
where the water table is close to or at the surface. In either case the presence of

11
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abundant water has caused the formation of hydric soils and has favoured the
dominance of either hydrophytic plants or water tolerant plants. The four major
types of wetlands are swamps, marshes, bogs and fens. Periodically soaked or wet
lands being used for agricultural purposes which no longer exhibit wetland
characteristics are not considered to be wetlands for the purposes of this
definition.i

1521.6.2 Provincial Policy Statement
The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS 2020){—38} provides the following definitions, which are
now to be used in conjunction with the regulations under the Conservation Authorities Act;

Erosion Hazard means:

... the loss of land, due to human or natural processes, that poses a threat to life and
property. The erosion hazard limit is determined using considerations that include the
100 year erosion rate (the average annual rate of recession extended over a one
hundred year time span), an allowance for slope stability, fand an erosion/erosion
access allowance].

Flooding Hazard means:

... the inundation, under the conditions specified below, of areas adjacent to a shoreline
or a river or stream system and not ordinarily covered by water:

a) Along the shorelines of the Great Lakes - St. Lawrence River System and large inland
lakes, the flooding hazard limit is based on the one-hundred year flood level plus an
allowance for wave uprush and other water-related hazards;

b) Along river, stream and small inland lake systems, the flooding hazard limit is the
greater of:

1. the flood resulting from the rainfall actually experienced during a major
storm such as the Hurricane Hazel storm (1954) or the Timmins storm
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(1961), transposed over a specific watershed and combined with the local
conditions, where evidence suggests that the storm event could have
potentially occurred over watersheds in the general area;

2. the one-hundred year flood; and

3. aflood which is greater than 1. or 2. which was actually experienced in a
particular watershed or portion thereof as a result of ice jams and which has
been approved as the standard for that specific area by the Minister of
Natural Resources and Forestry;

except where the use of the one hundred year flood or the actually experienced
event has been approved by the Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry as the
standard for a specific watershed (where the past history of flooding supports the
lowering of the standard).

Dynamic Beach Hazard means:

... areas of inherently unstable accumulations of shoreline sediments along the Great
Lakes — St. Lawrence River System and large inland lakes, as identified by provincial
standards, as amended from time to time. The dynamic beach hazard limit consists of
the flooding hazard limit plus a dynamic beach allowance.

Hazardous Sites (updated definition) means:

Property or lands that could be unsafe for development and site alteration due to naturally
occurring hazards. These may include unstable soils (sensitive marine clays [leda], organic soils)
or unstable bedrock (karst topography).

4531.6.3 Additional Interpretations
“Conservation of Land” is not defined in the Act or Regulation or any other planning document
prepared by the Province. Based on the review of all of the decisions in their entirety, the
interpretation below was developed by the Conservation Ontario Section 28 Peer Review and
Implementation Committee with representatives from the Ontario Ministry of Natural
Resources and Forestry.

Conservation of Land is interpreted as:

... the protection, management, or restoration of lands within the watershed ecosystem
for the purpose of maintaining or enhancing the natural features and hydrologic and
ecological functions within the watershed (February 2008).

The common uses of words in this interpretation can be found in the Oxford Dictionary as
follows:

Protection means to defend or keep safe from or against danger or injury. (It is assumed
that this would apply to animate (people) as well as inanimate objects (land or

property).
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Management means organize or regulate (while management can also mean managing
or being managed as well as being in charge of administration of business concerns or
public undertakings).

Restoration means to bring back to original state or bring back to former place or
condition; restoration is the act of restoring. (Restoration can also apply to rebuilding or
repairing).

Maintaining means to cause to continue; retain in being; take action to preserve in good
order (such as in a machine or house etc.)

Enhancing means to heighten or intensify (quality).

For further background information, all Ontario Land Miningand-tands-Tribunal (formerly
Mining and Lands Commissioner) decisions regarding Section 28 of the Conservation Authorities

Act may be found at:
https://olt.gov.on.ca/tribunals/mlt/decisions/httpLLelto-gov-on-cattribunals/mit/decisionsfcons
; horiti :

In addition, the Conservation Authorities Act and Ontario Regulation 97/04 do not define
“Interference” nor was any definition found in any other planning document; hence, the
interpretation below was developed by the Conservation Ontario Section 28 Peer Review and
Implementation Committee with representatives from the Ontario Ministry of Natural
Resources and Forestry. Under the Regulation, “interference” only applies to projects within
watercourses and wetlands.

Interference in any way is interpreted as:

“any anthropogenic act or instance which hinders, disrupts, degrades or impedes in any way the
natural features or hydrologic and ecologic functions of a wetland or watercourse” (March
2008).

The common uses of words in this interpretation can be found in the Oxford Dictionary as
follows:

Hinder means to delay or impede
Disrupt means to interrupt or disturb (an activity or process)
Degrade means lower the character or quality of

Impede means to delay or block the progress or action of

1:61.7 Activities Typically Regulated

The following list identifies examples of development activities that LTC typically regulates. In many
cases, the proposed development and proposed ancillary uses of the development could detrimentally
affect the control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches, or the conservation of land. These
development activities may include, but are not limited to:
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* Construction of all buildings and additions including modification or reconstruction of
foundations which support existing buildings;

* Breakwalls, revetments, rubble groynes, jetties, etc;

e Other similar marine works on or near shorelines or lakeshores;

¢ Dock Abutments;

¢ Stairs, decks, gazebos;

* Boat ramps, boat storage structures;

* Dredging;

¢ In-ground and above-ground pools;

* Temporary or permanent placement of fill, grading, removal of fill, or site alteration;

¢ Retaining walls;

e Park model trailers and mobile homes;

* Bridges, crossings, roads and pipelines; and

*  Municipal drains.

In some cases (e.g., docks), permits may not be required from LTC if permission is granted by Parks
Canada or NDMNREF. In other cases (e.g., shoreline protection) permits may be required from more than
one agency.

Repairs and renovations to an existing building within the existing roofline and exterior walls and above
the existing foundation within a hazard area would not require the permission of LTC, unless the
proposal is associated with a change in use or increases the number of dwelling units. This type of
activity could increase the risk to life, social disruption, or result in damages from the hazard.

It is the direction of LTC to limit the size and number of proposed works. This will assist in assessing
cumulative impacts of multiple structures or other development on a subject property, over a period of
time.

+71.8 Provincial Perspective on Natural Hazards

1731.8.1 Introduction
The Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry is responsible for
natural hazard management in Ontario. Where CAs have been established, the responsibility for
natural hazard management has been delegated to them. The Province, however, continues to
provide the overall direction, guidance and technical standards with respect to natural hazard
management. The following is an executive summary of the Province’s approach to natural
hazard management in Ontario.

Natural, physical environmental processes that occur near or at the surface of
the earth can produce unexpected events of unusual magnitude or severity. Such
occurrences are generally regarded as natural hazards. The outcome can be
catastrophic, frequently resulting in damage to property, injury to humans and
other organisms, and tragically even loss of life. In these cases, natural hazards
are considered natural disasters.

(Excerpt from MNR (2001) — p. 4)

The management of natural hazards involves a combination of four main program components:
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1. Prevention — of new development locating within areas subject to loss of life and
property damage from natural hazards;
2. Protection — of existing development from natural hazards through the application
of structural and non-structural measures/acquisition;
3. Emergency Response — to evacuate and mitigate existing residents through flood
forecasting and warning including disaster relief; and
4. Co-ordination — between natural hazard management and planning and
development.
Details related to natural hazard management applications are contained in the Natural Hazards
Technical Guides (MNR, 2002a; MNR, 2002b; MNR, 1996a; MNR, 1996b; and MNR 1996c).

1721.8.2 Principles
The guiding principles behind natural hazard management are:

* Proper natural hazard management requires that natural hazards (flooding, erosion,
leda clay, organic soils, karst bedrock, dynamic beaches) be simultaneously recognized
and addressed in a manner that is integrated with land use planning and maintains
environmental and ecosystem integrity;

* Effective floodplain management can only occur on a watershed and littoral reach basis
with due consideration given to development effects and associated environmental and
ecosystem impacts;

* Local conditions vary along floodplains and shorelines including depth, velocity, littoral
drift, seiche, fetch, accretion, deposition, valleyland characteristics, etc., and accordingly
must be taken into account in the planning and management of natural hazards;

* New development which is susceptible to natural hazards or which will cause or
aggravate the hazards to existing and approved land uses or which will cause adverse
environmental impacts must not be permitted to occur unless the natural hazard and
environmental impacts have been addressed; and

* Natural hazard management and land use planning are distinct yet related activities that
require overall co-ordination on the part of Municipalities, Conservation Authorities, the
Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry, and the
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing.

1+731.8.3 Consideration of Ingress/Egress
The ability for the public and emergency operations personnel (police, firefighters, ambulance,
etc.) to safely access a regulated feature during an emergency, such as a flooding event, is an
important factor when considering any application for development. Proposals must be
reviewed to ensure access to the proposed development is safe and appropriate for the
proposed use. The provision of means by which people, vehicles, and equipment can gain
access to and from the regulated feature for maintenance and/or construction of remedial
works must also be considered.

In the context of new development, the risks should be controlled by prohibiting development
in dangerous or inaccessible portions of the regulated feature.

For existing development, safety risks are a function of the occupancy of structures, the
susceptibility of the structure and the access routes to the structure. For existing development,
the following factors should be considered:
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e The degree of risk with the use of the existing access;

e The ability to modify the existing access or construct a new safe access;

e The ability to find and use the access during an emergency; and

e The ability and willingness of the municipality (emergency vehicles) to use the access.

The risk can also be controlled by limiting the size (and therefore limiting the occupancy) of
additions or reconstruction projects. If the risk is determined to be too great, no
modifications/alterations/reconstructions of existing structures should be considered.

1-7+41.8.4 Floodproofing
The “Floodproofing Standard” as defined in the PPS means:

the combination of measures incorporated into the basic design and/or construction of
buildings, structures, or properties to reduce or eliminate flooding hazards, wave uprush
and other water related hazards along the shorelines of the Great Lakes-St. Lawrence
River System and large inland lakes and flooding hazards along river, stream and small
inland lake systems.

Floodproofing includes alteration to the design of specific buildings, raising of ingress and egress
roadways and driveways, the construction of dykes, flood control channels, etc. The variety of
floodproofing options and requirements are too detailed and extensive to include in a policy and
procedures guideline. LTC has established criteria which are outlined in Appendix F. Additional
information is also available for referencing in the “Technical Guide — River and Stream Systems:
Flooding Hazard limit” (MNR, 2002a).

1:81.9 Flood, Erosion and Dynamic Beach Hazard Applications in the Lower Trent

Conservation Watershed
The regulatory standard for the Lower Trent watershed is:

e lLake Ontario: 1:100 year event
e Trent River: 1:100 year event
e All other watercourses: Timmins event

In the LTC watershed, the following flood, erosion and dynamic beach hazards are applied and the
reference documents are listed here for each delineated floodplain.

1+8-11.9.1 Lake Ontario
The flood hazard for Lake Ontario is based on the 100-year flood limit that is comprised of the
100-year flood level plus wave uprush. The erosion hazard is based on the potential for erosion
in a 100-year time frame. These hazards along with dynamic beach hazards for Lake Ontario
were first identified in the following report:

e Lake Ontario Shoreline Management Plan (LOSMP), 1990, by Sandwell, Swan &
Wooster.

Final flood hazard elevations were provided in an update, dated December 1992. Subsequent
shoreline studies for the Township of Alnwick/Haldimand and Township of Cramahe were
undertaken to build on the information provided in the “Sandwell Report”. Fhese-tweo-studies
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z “- The updated studies arewere:

e Cramahe Shorelands Project, 1997
e Alnwick/Haldimand Township Lake Ontario Shorelands Project, 2002.

In 2018 to 2020, LTC undertook an update to the Shoreline Management Reports in partnership
with the Ganaraska Region Conservation Authority (GRCA) and Central Lake Ontario
Conservation Authority (CLOCA). The resulting report provided much needed updates to flood,
erosion and dynamic beach hazards along the Lower Trent Conservation portion of the Lake
Ontario Shoreline. This study extended from Wellers Bay in the City of Quinte West in the as-the
easternmostextent to the western boundary of the Township of Alnwick/Haldimand. The
current Lake Ontario hazard report is:

e |ake Ontario Shoreline Management Plan, November 5, 2020 (Zuzek)

The resulting 100-year combined (still water and wind setup) flood level for the LTC Lake Ontario
shoreline is 75.97 metres CGVD28 (Canadian Geodetic Vertical Datum 1928) with varying wave
uprush considerations that determine the entire Flood Hazard delineation.

There are-were no detailed technical studies for the Bay of Quinte portion of Lake Ontario but
the-a Memorandum by the MNR (February 21, 1991—see Appendix |) identifies-identified the
100-year water level for the Lower Trent Conservation portion of the Bay of Quinte as 75.8
metres CGVD28-GSE. During the 2019-2020 Lake Ontario Shoreline Update, LTC contracted SJL
Engineering to provide an update on the Combined 100-year Flood Level for the Bay of Quinte
based on statistical analyses completed with the Lake Ontario Study. The resulting
memorandum provides an update for the flood level for the Bay of Quinte and is found in
Appendix |. The resulting flood level for the Bay of Quinte is 76.05 metres CGVD28:

e Bay of Quinte 100-Year Combined Flood Level, February 29, 2020 (SJL Engineering)

There is-alseare-a communications in the historic memos-diseussien about wave uprush to be
used on the Bay of Quinte in the communications between MNR and the Bay of Quinte
Conservation Authorities and three acceptable methods to calculate wave uprush were
documented. Lower Trent Conservation applies a 0.2 metre uprush to the 100-year flood limit
on the Bay of Quinte, resulting in a Flood Hazard elevation of 76.8-25 metres CGVD28-GS€.

risis-consistentwith-the approach-used-hy-neighbouring-Quinte Conservation—There are no
dynamic beach hazards identified on the Bay of Quinte and the standard erosion hazard of 36-15
metres_from the 100-year flood elevation has been applied as per NDMNRF Technical Guidelines
for Large Inland LakesProvincial-Guideline, 1996.

18:21.9.2 Other Lakes
Both Little Lake in the Township of Cramahe and Oak Lake in the City of Quinte West originally
hadhave mapped flood lines that have-had not been delineated through engineered studies.
These lines have-were identified as a horizontally measured 15 metre zone around the average
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lake water level to delineate a potential high water level. A 15-metre regulation limit-is was
applied to these floodlines for a regulated area of 30 metres beyond the typical water’s edge.

In 2021 LTC staff conducted a preliminary hydrology assessment of Little Lake and used LiDAR
mapping provided through OMAFRA to better identify the actual flood hazard for Little Lake.
This mapping has now been incorporated into the LTC mapping. Flood Hazard elevations for
Little Lake are 171.93 metres CGVD2013 or 172.28 metres CGVD1928. Calculations for this
assessment are provided in Appendix K.

The preliminary hydrology to calculate flood depths for Oak Lake has been undertaken but there
is not accurate eneugh topographic information te-be-able to determine the flood hazard
mapping for Oak Lake at this time. Therefore, the 15 metre setback is still in effect without any
confirmed flood hazard elevation.

Oak Lake is identified as Area Specific Policy 3 in the City of Quinte West Official Plan_ and the
LTC regulated area is still defined as stated above. Planning studies may be required before
Lower Trent Conservation can issue permits. These policies should be reviewed in consultation
with City of Quinte West planning staff, prior to approval of any LTC permits.

Policies specific to flood hazards on Little Lake and Oak Lake are found in Section 5.2.1.1.
regarding One-Zone Floodplain mapping.

1831.9.3 Trent River and Rice Lake
The regulatory event for the Trent River is the 100-year event. The floodplain delineations were
completed in two studies and both are treated as one-zone areas. The first study defined the
floodplain from the Bay of Quinte to Highway 401 and the second study defined the floodplain
from Highway 401 to Rice Lake.

e Trent River Floodplain Mapping Report, 1975. M.M. Dillon Limited.
(Associated Mapping TR-T-1 to TR-T-4).
e Floodplain Mapping Study of the Trent River, 1983. Cumming-Cockburn & Associates.
1:5000 mapping TR-1 to TR-45
1:2000 mapping of Flood Damage Areas:
Hastings: (TR-H-1 to TR-H-5)
Campbellford: (TR-C-1 to TR-C-5)
Percy Boom: TR-PB-1 to TR-PB-3)
Frankford: (TR-F-1 to TR-F-4)

Note that Rice Lake is listed as the smallest of the Large Inland Lakes in the MNR Technical Guide
with an area of 100 km2. There are no technical studies assessing erosion or dynamic beach
hazards on Rice Lake and therefore the flood elevation for Rice Lake identified in the Trent River
mapping is the only hazard delineated for Rice Lake at this time (187.9 metres CGVD28). This is
covered in Trent River maps (TR-46 to TR-62). Also note that there are some steep shorelines
along Rice Lake that would require erosion hazard assessment for steep slopes, similar to a

riverine system.
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184194 One-Zone Riverine Areas
Not all streams have delineated floodplains in the Lower Trent Conservation watershed.
However, the following reports have floodplain delineations associated with them. The creek
name and associated reports are listed below. All of these floodplains have been delineated
with the Timmins Storm Regulatory event.

e Shelter Valley & Barnum House Creeks: Shelter Valley and Barnum House Creeks
Floodplain Study, 1978. Crysler & Lathem Ltd.

e Colborne Creek (Colborne): Floodplain Mapping Colborne Creek, Village of Colborne,
1982. Kilborn Limited (Note: 2-Zone study undertaken but results did not support
creation of a 2-Zone policy).

e Dead & York Creeks (Murray Ward): Dead & York Creek Subwatershed Plan, 1998.
Totten Sims Hubicki Associates.

e DND Creek (Trenton): DND Creek Floodline Mapping Study, 2002. PSR Group Ltd.

e Glen Miller Creek (Trenton & Sidney Ward): Floodplain Mapping and Preliminary
Engineering Study, Glen Miller Creek, 1983. Cumming-Cockburn & Associates Limited
(CCA); and the Spill Analysis of the Glen Miller Creek by CCA dated April 1984.-

o Killoran Creek (Hastings): Killoran Creek Flood Reduction Study, 1985. Totten Sims
Hubicki Associates.

e Mill/Burnley Creek (Warkworth): Mill Creek Preliminary Engineering Study, 1983.
Cumming-Cockburn & Associates Limited.

e Rawdon Creek (Stirling other than SPA): Flood Damage Reduction Study, Rawdon
Creek, Village of Stirling, 1985. Kilborn Limited.

e Meyers, Massey and other South Sidney Creeks (Sidney Ward): South Sidney
Watershed Plan, 1985. Totten Sims Hubicki Associates.

1851.9.5 Two-Zone Areas
Two zone concepts recognize that floodplains can be divided into two zones: the floodway,
where the majority of the flood is conveyed, and flood fringes, which exist on both sides of the
floodway. They can be established by a Municipality in conjunction with the Conservation
Authority and MNRF, following recommendations of a detailed engineering study.

There are four two-zone policy areas located within the Lower Trent Watershed: Butler Creek in
Brighton, Cold Creek in Frankford; Mayhew Creek in Trenton and Trout Creek in Campbellford.
The studies and maps associated with these areas are as follows:

e Butler Creek 2-Zone (Brighton): Butler Creek Flood Reduction Study, 1988. Totten Sims
Hubicki Associates.

e Cold Creek 2-Zone (Frankford): Floodplain Assessment & Policy Formulation for a Two
Zone Concept Application in the Village of Frankford, July 1983. Totten Sims Hubicki
Associates.

e Mayhew Creek 2-Zone (Trenton): Mayhew Creek Two-Zone Concept, City of Trenton
and Township of Murray, 1983. Totten Sims Hubicki Associates. — Note that the 2-Zone
was only implemented in Trenton and not Murray Township.
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o Trout Creek 2-Zone (Campbellford): Final Report Trout Creek Floodplain Management
Study, 1982. Maclaren Plansearch Inc.

Note that a two-zone study was completed for Colborne Creek in the Township of Cramahe
(Ecos Garatech Associates - November 1991) but the report concluded that Colborne Creek was
NOT a suitable candidate for implementation of a Two-Zone Concept. Floodplain mapping was
updated during this study in several areas so this mapping should be used for regulatory
purposes.

1861.9.6 Special Policy Area
A Special Policy Area is an area within a community that has historically existed in the floodplain
where site specific policies apply. Only the MNRF and MMAH have the authority to establish
Special Policy Areas; this authority cannot be delegated to municipalities and other planning
bodies.

Rawdon Creek - Downtown Stirling: One Special Policy Area with respect to floodplains exists in
the Lower Trent Conservation watershed within the downtown core of the Village of Stirling in
the Township of Stirling-Rawdon. This area is bounded by Front Street and Mill Street in the
south, Victoria Street in the north, North Street in the west and Edward Street in the east. The
property of the Stirling Creamery located on the south side of Front Street is also considered in
this zone although not included in the descriptions. This is because the Special Policy Area is
intended to ensure the long term economic viability of the area and the creamery is an integral
component of the economy of Stirling. In this area, the 1:100 year flood elevations are to be
used for floodproofing requirements rather than the Timmins event. Lands above the 1:100 year
elevation may be developed without the need for floodproofing measures. Lands south of
Rawdon Creek within this zone that are below the 1:100 year elevation may be developed with
floodproofing and causing no impediment to flow to Rawdon Creek. The associated report for
the flood elevations identified for this Special Policy Area is Flood Damage Reduction Study,
Rawdon Creek, Village of Stirling, 1985, by Kilborn Limited.
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2 GENERAL POLICIES
Background:

Lower Trent Region Conservation Authority (LTC) will be guided by the following general administrative
guidance with respect to the implementation of its regulatory responsibilities:

e Development, interference and/or alteration activities shall not be undertaken in a regulated
area without written permission from LTC.

e Where a regulated area pertains to more than one water-related hazard (e.g., lands susceptible
to flooding that are part of a wetland), policies will be applied jointly, and where applicable, the
more restrictive policies will apply.

e Technical studies and/or assessments, site plans and/or other plans submitted as part of an
application for permission to undertake development, interference and/or alteration in a
regulated area must be completed by a qualified professional to the satisfaction of LTC in
conformity with the most current provincial technical guidelines or guidelines accepted by LTC
through a Board Resolution.

Note: Information regarding technical standards and guidelines is contained within the Appendices.

Similar to the MNR recommended 6-metre erosion access allowance (Section 3.4, Technical Guide for
River and Stream Systems: Erosion Hazard Limit, MNR), LTC recommends that a 6-metre access
allowance is applied to all hazard lands. Note that emergency access is required along the hazard as well
as between the buildings and the lot line to allow for heavy equipment access to the hazard area.

The guidelines for development within the 15 metre adjacent lands to a hazard include an access
setback. Three main principles support the inclusion of an access setback:

e providing for emergency access to hazard areas;

e providing for construction access for regular maintenance and access to the site in the event of a
natural hazard or failure of a structure; and

e providing protection against unforeseen or predicted external conditions which could have an
adverse effect on the natural conditions or processes acting on or within a hazard prone area.

Activities in regulated areas that are carried out by other provincial ministries or the federal government
do not require a permit. Activities conducted on provincial crown land by third-party proponents in a
regulated area may require a permit, unless acting as an agent of the Crown.

Works for which permission is required under the Regulation may also be subject to other legislation,
policies and standards that are administered by other agencies and municipalities, such as the Planning
Act, Public Lands Act, Nutrient Management Act, Drainage Act, Environmental Assessment Act (EA Act)
or the federal Fisheries Act, etc. It is the responsibility of the applicant (or applicant’s agent) to ensure
that all necessary approvals are obtained prior to undertaking any works for which a permit under this
Regulation has been obtained.

LTC Policies — General Policies:
Within areas defined by the regulation (i.e., regulated areas), including Lake Ontario shoreline hazard
lands and an allowance, river or stream valleys and an allowance, wetlands or other areas where
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development could interfere with the hydrologic function of a wetland (areas of interference),
watercourses, or hazardous lands, the following general policies will apply:

1)

2)

Development, interference and/or alteration will not be permitted within a regulated area,

except in accordance with the policies contained in this document.

Notwithstanding Policy 2. (1), the LTC Board of Directors, sitting as the Hearing Board, may grant

permission for development, interference and/or alteration where the applicant provides

evidence acceptable to the Board that documents that the development and/or activity will
have no adverse effect on the control of flooding, erosion, dynamic beaches, pollution or the
conservation of land with respect to Lake Ontario shoreline, river or stream valleys, hazardous
land, wetlands, and areas of interference or will not result in an unacceptable interference with

a watercourse or wetland.

In addition to specific conditions outlined through this document, development, interference

and/or alteration within a regulated area may be permitted only where:

a) risk to public safety is not increased;

b) thereis noincrease in habitation in the hazard area with the exception of allowable flood
fringes or wave uprush hazard areas;

c) susceptibility to natural hazards is not increased nor new hazards created (e.g., there will be
no impacts on adjacent properties with respect to natural hazards);

d) safeingress/egress is available for proposed development that increases habitation outside
of hazard lands;

e) pollution, sedimentation and erosion during construction and post construction is
minimized using best management practices including site, landscape, infrastructure and/or
facility design, construction controls, and appropriate remedial measures;

f) access for emergency works and maintenance of flood or erosion control works is available;

g) proposed development is constructed, repaired and/or maintained in accordance with
accepted engineering principles and approved engineering standards or to the satisfaction
of LTC, whichever is applicable based on the structural scale and scope, and purpose of the
project;

h) there are no adverse hydraulic or fluvial effects on rivers, creeks, streams, or watercourses;

i) there are no adverse sedimentation or littoral effects on the Lake Ontario shoreline;

j) there are no adverse effects on the hydrologic function of wetlands; and,

k) the control of flooding, erosion, dynamic beaches, pollution and/or the conservation of land
is not adversely affected during and post development.

Prohibited Uses:

4)

Notwithstanding the General Policies referenced above, in accordance with Section 3.1 of the
Provincial Policy Statement, development will not be permitted within hazardous lands as
defined in the Conservation Authorities Act, where the use is:

e aninstitutional use associated with hospitals, nursing homes, pre-school, school nurseries,
day care and schools, where there is a threat to the safe evacuation of the sick, the elderly,
persons with disabilities or the young during an emergency as a result of flooding, failure of
floodproofing and/or protection works, and/or erosion;

e an essential emergency service such as that provided by fire, police and ambulance stations
and electrical substations, which would be impaired during an emergency as result of
flooding, failure of flood-proofing measures and/or protection works, and/or erosion; or,

s—uses associated with the disposal, manufacture, treatment or storage of hazardous
substances.

23



Page 106
LTC REGULATION 163/06 POLICY DOCUMENT

24



Page 107
LTC REGULATION 163/06 POLICY DOCUMENT

3 GREAT LAKES AND LARGE INLAND LAKES SHORELINES

3.1 Ontario Regulation 163/06

The Lower Trent Conservation Regulation contains the following sections dealing with the shoreline of
Lake Ontario. Although Rice Lake is listed as the smallest of the Large Inland Lakes (100 km2), it has been
regulated as a smaller lake.

The LTC Regulation contains the following sections dealing with Great Lakes and Inland
Lakes Shorelines:

Development prohibited

2.(1) Subject to section 3, no person shall undertake development or permit another
person to undertake development in or on areas within the jurisdiction of the
Authority that are:

(a) adjacent or close to the shoreline of the Great Lakes-St. Lawrence River
System or to inland lakes that may be affected by flooding, erosion or
dynamic beaches, including the area from the furthest offshore extent of
the Authority’s boundary to the furthest landward extent of the aggregate
of the following distances:

i) the 100 year flood level, plus the appropriate allowance for wave
uprush shown in the most recent document entitled “Lake Ontario
Shoreline Management Plan”, or as identified in the most recent
document entitled “Cramahe Shorelands Project” for the Township of
Cramahe or in the most recent document entitled “Alnwick/Haldimand
Lake Ontario Shorelands Project” for the Township of
Alnwick/Haldimand, available at the head office of the Authority,

ii) the predicted long term stable slope projected from the existing stable
toe of the slope or from the predicted location of the toe of the slope as
that location may have shifted as a result of shoreline erosion over a
100-year period shown in the most recent document entitled “Lake
Ontario Shoreline Management Plan”, or as identified in the most recent
document entitled “Cramahe Shorelands Project” for the Township of
Cramahe or in the most recent document entitled “Alnwick/Haldimand
Lake Ontario Shorelands Project” for the Township of
Alnwick/Haldimand, available at the head office of the Authority,
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iii) where a dynamic beach is associated with the waterfront lands, the
appropriate allowance inland to accommodate dynamic beach
movement shown in the most recent document entitled “Lake Ontario
Shoreline Management Plan”, or as identified in the most recent
document entitled “Cramahe Shorelands Project” for the Township of
Cramahe or in the most recent document entitled “Alnwick/Haldimand
Lake Ontario Shorelands Project” for the Township of
Alnwick/Haldimand, available at the head office of the Authority, and

iv) an allowance of 15 metres inland;

Permission to develop

3.(1) The Authority may grant permission for development in or on the areas described
in subsection 2(1) if, in its opinion, the control of flooding, erosion, dynamic
beaches, pollution or the conservation of land will not be affected by the
development.

(2)  The permission of the Authority shall be given in writing, with or without
conditions.”

Note: There is no reference to “alterations to shorelines” within the LTC Regulation. However,
the additions of “shorelines” to Section 28(17)(b) and 28(18) of the Conservation Authorities Act
is a Conservation Ontario Council approved proposed amendment (February, 2008). This
amendment must be initiated through the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry.

3.2 Policy Standards

The following sections outline the policy standards for implementing the LTC Regulation with respect to
the Lake Ontario shoreline and the associated allowances. LTC, in their role through the planning
process, should review planning applications to ensure that, all development can be set back an
appropriate distance from all shoreline hazards.

LTC may require technical studies be undertaken to demonstrate the suitability of development
proposals. Technical studies must be carried out by a qualified professional, with recognized expertise in
the appropriate discipline, and prepared using established procedures and recognized methodologies to
the satisfaction of LTC.

3.2.1 Development within the Shoreline Flood Hazard
Background

For the purposes of the following policies, the shoreline flood hazard is the limit of the landward
extent of flooding accounting for the 100--year flood elevation, plus an allowance for wave
uprush and other water related hazards. The 100-year flood elevation (sometimes called the
Combined Flood Elevation) consists of the 100-year stillwater level plus the wind setup
(otherwise known as the storm surge).
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LTC Policies

1) Development within the shoreline flood hazard shall not be permitted.

2) Placement of fill, flood hazard protection and bank stabilization works to allow for
future/proposed development or an increase in development envelope within the shoreline
flood hazard shall not be permitted.

3) Development associated with new and/or the expansion of existing trailer parks /
campgrounds in the shoreline flood hazard shall not be permitted.

4) Major development within the shoreline flood hazard shall not be permitted.

5) Redevelopment of derelict and abandoned buildings within the shoreline flood hazard shall
not be permitted.

6) Stormwater management facilities within the shoreline flood hazard shall not be permitted.
7) Basements within the shoreline flood hazard shall not be permitted.

8) Underground parking within the shoreline flood hazard shall not be permitted.

9) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.1 4), major development within the shoreline flood hazard may

be permitted where it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of
flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be
affected. The submitted plans must demonstrate that:

a) The proposed development is not located at or below the 100-year flood level
(75.97 m CGVD28GSE for Lake Ontario or 76.055-8 m CGVD28GSE for Bay of
Quinte);

b) there is no feasible alternative site outside of the Regulatory flood hazardgtain

for the proposed development and the proposed development is located in an
area of least (and acceptable) risk;

c) the proposed works do not create new hazards or aggravate flooding on
adjacent or other properties and there are no negative upstream and
downstream hydraulic impacts;

d) the development is protected from the flood hazard in accordance with
established floodproofing and protection techniques;

e) the flood depths on access roads and the lot do not exceed 0.3 metres;

f) the proposed development will not prevent access for emergency works,
maintenance, and evacuation;

g) the potential for surficial erosion has been addressed through the submission of
proper drainage, erosion and sediment control and site stabilization/restoration
plans;

h) natural features and/or ecological functions associated with conservation of

land are protected, pollution is prevented and erosion and dynamic beach
hazards have been adequately addressed ; and,
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i) for major development where the depth of flooding exceeds 0.8 metres (2.5 ft)
an engineering design, carried out by a qualified professional with recognized
expertise in the appropriate discipline, must be prepared using established
procedures and recognized methodologies to the satisfaction of the LTC.

10) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.1 1), public infrastructure (e.g. roads, sewers, flood and erosion
control works) and various utilities (e.g. pipelines) may be permitted within the shoreline
flood hazard subject to the activity being approved through a satisfactory Environmental
Assessment process and/or if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the
control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not
be affected.

11) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.1 1), development associated with public parks (e.g. passive or
low intensity outdoor recreation, education, or trail systems) may be permitted within the
shoreline flood hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control
of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be
affected.

12) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.1 1), shoreline, bank, and slope stabilization to protect existing
development and conservation or restoration projects may be permitted within the

shoreline flood hazard for-subjeet-to-major stabilization worksthe-activity-being-approved

13) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.1 1), moderate development and structural repairs may be
permitted within the shoreline flood hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction
of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation
of land will not be affected. The submitted plans must demonstrate that:

a) there is no feasible alternative site outside of the shoreline flood hazard for the
proposed development and that the proposed development is located in an
area of least (and acceptable) risk;

b) the proposed works do not create new or aggravate flooding on the subject,
adjacent or other properties;

c) the development is protected from the shoreline flood hazard in accordance
with established floodproofing and protection techniques. Habitable
development must be dry floodproofed to 0.3 metres above the Regulatory
flood elevation and non-habitable development must be floodproofed to the
Regulatory flood elevation;

d) the proposed development will not prevent access for emergency works,
maintenance, and evacuation;

e) the potential for surficial erosion has been addressed through the submission of
proper drainage, erosion and sediment control and site stabilization/restoration
plans;
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f) natural features and/or ecological functions associated with conservation of
land are protected, pollution is prevented and flood, erosion and dynamic beach
hazards have been adequately addressed; and

g) for moderate development (except decks) where the depth of flooding exceeds
0.8 metres (2.5 ft) an engineering design carried out by a qualified professional
with recognized expertise in the appropriate discipline must be prepared using
established procedures and recognized methodologies to the satisfaction of LTC.

14) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.1. 1), development associated with existing uses located within
the shoreline flood hazard such as marine facilities, in-ground (at existing grade) pools,
minor development, landscaping retaining walls, grading, etc., may be permitted if it has
been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution,
or the conservation of land will not be affected.

15) Notwithstanding 3.2.1 1), development may be permitted for the reconstruction or
relocation of a building within the shoreline flood hazard, provided that it has not been
damaged or destroyed by flooding or other water related hazards and if it has been
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the CA that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution,
dynamic beaches or conservation of land will not be affected. The submitted plans must

demonstrate that:

a) the building or structure meets the criteria described in Policy 9) above with the
exception of Condition a);

b) the building or structure must not be located closer to the hazard than the
original building; and,
c) the building or structure does not exceed the original floor space plus the

allowable floor space for moderate development. If the building or structure is
enlarged, future moderate development to the building or structure will not be

considered.

16) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.1 1), development associated with the construction of a
driveway or access way through the shoreline flood hazard in order to provide access to
lands outside of the shoreline flood hazard may be permitted subject to the provision of
safe access as identified in Section 1.6.3 and if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction
of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation

of land will not be affected.

17) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.1 1), removal or placement of minor fill and associated site
grading or moderate stabilization works may be permitted within the shoreline flood hazard
if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion,
pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be affected.

18) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.1 1), the replacement of sewage disposal systems may be
permitted within the shoreline flood hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction
of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation
of land will not be affected. The replacement system should be located outside of the
shoreline flood hazard where possible and only permitted within the shoreline flood hazard

in the area of lowest risk.
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3.2.2

3.2.3

19) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.1 1), parking areas may be permitted within the shoreline flood
hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding,
erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be affected and that
safe pedestrian and vehicular access is achieved.

20) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.1 1), boathouses may be permitted within the Shoreline Flood
Hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding,
erosion, dynamic beach hazards, pollution or the conservation of land will not be affected,

and the-boatheuseisanchored-and-con ed Aglestore

Development within the Allowance Adjacent to the Shoreline Flood Hazard

LTC Policies

1) Development may be permitted within the allowance adjacent to the shoreline flood hazard
if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion,
pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be affected. The submitted
plans must demonstrate that:

a) development does not aggravate the flood hazard or create a new one;

b) development does not impede access for emergency works, maintenance and
evacuation;

c) the potential for surficial erosion has been addressed through proper drainage,
erosion and sediment control and site stabilization/ restoration plans; and

d) the natural features and/or ecological functions associated with conservation of
land are protected, pollution is prevented and erosion and dynamic beach
hazards have been adequately addressed.

Development within the Shoreline Erosion Hazard
Background

For the purpose of the following policy, the shoreline erosion hazard is the limit of the landward
extent of the stable slope measured from the existing protected or unprotected toe of slope,
plus the limit of the 100 year erosion limit.

LTC Policies

1) Development shall not be permitted within the shoreline erosion hazard.

2) Stabilization works within the shoreline erosion hazard to allow for future/proposed
development or an increase in development envelope or area shall not be permitted;

3) Development associated with new and/or the expansion of existing trailer
parks/campgrounds in the shoreline erosion hazard shall not be permitted.

4) Major development within the shoreline erosion hazard shall not be permitted.

5) Redevelopment of derelict and abandoned buildings within the shoreline erosion hazard
shall not be permitted.
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6)

7)
8)
9)

Stormwater management facilities within the shoreline erosion hazard shall not be
permitted.

Basements within the shoreline erosion hazard shall not be permitted.
Underground parking within the shoreline erosion hazard shall not be permitted.

Notwithstanding Section 3.2.3 4), major development within the mapped erosion hazard
may be permitted where it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the
control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will
not be affected. The development may be permitted outside of the revised site-specific

erosion hazard. The submitted plans must demonstrate that:

a) Pre-existing engineered shoreline protection works are present and structural
integrity has been confirmed. The shoreline protection works will be given a
maximum credit of 35 years erosion protection unless otherwise specified by a
qualified professional with recognized expertise in the appropriate discipline.
This assessment will define a revised site-specific erosion hazard.;

b) there is no feasible alternative site outside of the erosion hazard for the
proposed development or in the event that there is no feasible alternative site,
that the proposed development is located in an area of least (and acceptable)
risk;

c) the proposed works do not create new hazards or aggravate erosion on
adjacent or other properties;

d) the development will not prevent access into and through the shoreline erosion
hazard in order to undertake preventative actions/maintenance or during an
emergency;

e) the potential for surficial erosion has been addressed through the submission of
proper drainage, erosion and sediment control and site stabilization/restoration
plans;

f) natural features and/or ecological functions associated with conservation of
land are protected, pollution is prevented and erosion hazards have been
adequately addressed-; and

g) the plan has been carried out by a qualified professional with recognized
expertise in the appropriate discipline and must be prepared using established
procedures and recognized methodologies to the satisfaction of the LTC.

10) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.3 1), public infrastructure (e.g. roads, sewers, flood and

erosion control works) and various utilities (e.g. pipelines) may be permitted within the
shoreline erosion hazard subject to the activity being approved through a satisfactory
Environmental Assessment process and/or if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction
of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the
conservation of land will not be affected.

11) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.3 1), development associated with public parks (e.g. passive

or low intensity outdoor recreation, -education, or trail systems) may be permitted within
the shoreline erosion hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the
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control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will
not be affected.

12) Notwithstanding Section 23.2.3 1), sherelinebank-and-slepemajor stabilization works to
protect existing development and conservation or restoration projects may be permitted

within the shoreline erosion hazard subject to the activity being approved through a
satisfactory Environmental Assessment process and/or if it has been demonstrated to the
satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the
conservation of land will not be affected through detailed engineering design.

12313)Notwithstanding Section 3.2.3 1), removal or placement of minor fill for shoreline
stabilization or moderate stabilization works may be permitted within the shoreline
erosion hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of
flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be
affected.

13}14)Notwithstanding Section 3.2.3 1), moderate development, in-ground (at grade) pools
and structural repairs may be permitted within the shoreline erosion hazard if it has been
demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution,
dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be affected. The submitted plans
must demonstrate that:

a) there is no feasible alternative site outside of the shoreline erosion hazard and
that the proposed development is located in an area of least (and acceptable)
risk;

b) no development is located within the stable slope allowance;

c) there is no impact on existing and future slope stability and bank stabilization;

d) development will not prevent access into and along the shoreline erosion
hazard in order to undertake preventative actions/maintenance or during an
emergency;

e) development will have no negative impacts on natural shoreline processes;

f) the potential for surficial erosion has been addressed through the submission of
proper drainage, erosion and sediment control and site stabilization/restoration
plans;

g) natural features and/or ecological functions contributing to the conservation of

land are protected, pollution is prevented, and flooding, and dynamic beach
hazards have been adequately addressed; and

h) the plan has been carried out by a qualified professional with recognized
expertise in the appropriate discipline and must be prepared using established
procedures and recognized methodologies to the satisfaction of the LTC.

14315)Notwithstanding Section 3.2.3 1), minor development associated with existing uses
located within the shoreline erosion hazard including landscaping retaining walls, grading,
and minor fill, may be permitted if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that
the control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land
will not be affected. The submitted plans must demonstrate that:
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a) there is no feasible alternative site outside of the shoreline erosion hazard and
that the proposed development is located in an area of least (and acceptable)
risk;

b) development will not prevent access into and through the shoreline erosion
hazard in order to undertake preventative actions/maintenance or during an
emergency;

c) there is no impact on existing and future slope stability and bank stabilization;

d) development will have no negative impacts on natural shoreline processes;

e) the potential for surficial erosion has been addressed through the submission of
proper drainage, erosion and sediment control and site stabilization/restoration
plans; and

f) natural features and/or ecological functions contributing to the conservation of

land are protected, pollution is prevented, flooding hazards, and dynamic beach
hazards have been adequately addressed.

15)16)Notwithstanding 3.2.3 1), development may be permitted for the reconstruction or
relocation of a building within the shoreline erosion hazard, provided that it has not been
damaged or destroyed by erosion and if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of
the CA that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution or dynamic beaches or conservation
of land will not be affected. The submitted plans must demonstrate that:

a) the building or structure meets the criteria described in Policy 13) above;

b) the building or structure is no closer to the hazard than existing development;
and

c) the building or structure does not exceed the original floor space plus the

allowable floor space for moderate development. If the building or structure is
enlarged, future moderate development to the building or structure will not be
considered.

16}17)Notwithstanding Section 3.2.3 1), development associated with the placement of fill for
the replacement of a sewage disposal system may be permitted within the shoreline
erosion hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of the LTC that the control of
flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be
affected. The replacement system should be located outside of the shoreline erosion
hazard where possible, and only permitted within the shoreline erosion hazard subject to
being located in the area of least and acceptable risk. The LTC may request a technical
study to ensure that the development is not subject to risk, and/or to establish the area of
least and acceptable risk.

17318)Notwithstanding Section 3.2.3 1), parking areas may be permitted within the shoreline
erosion hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of
flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be
affected and that safe pedestrian and vehicular access is achieved.

18}-Notwithstanding Section 3.2.3 1), development associated with uses that by their nature
are located within the hazard such as the construction or reconstruction of a marine
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facility, erosion control works, stairs, and shore wells may be permitted within the
shoreline erosion hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of the LTC that the
control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will
not be affected. LTC will require that the design be carried out by a qualified professional
with recognized expertise in the appropriate discipline and must be prepared using
established procedures and recognized methodologies to the satisfaction of the LTC.

19)

3.2.4 Development within the Allowance Adjacent to the Shoreline Erosion Hazard

LTC Policies

1) Development may be permitted within the allowance adjacent to the shoreline erosion
hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding,
erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be affected. The
submitted plans must demonstrate that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

development does not aggravate the erosion hazard or create a new one;

development does not impede access for emergency works, maintenance and
evacuation;

where new development is proposed adjacent to the erosion hazard, all
buildings or structures must be located a minimum horizontal distance of 6
metres beyond the furthest landward extent of the erosion hazard;

for additions to existing buildings or structures located within the 6-metre
setback allowance, the addition cannot encroach further into the setback from
the erosion hazard limit than the original building or structure;

for reconstruction of buildings or structures located within the 6-metre setback
allowance, the new building or structure is constructed in the same location as
the original building or structure provided that there are no reasonable
alternatives to locate the new building or structure outside of the required
setback, and the new building or structure cannot encroach further into the
setback from the erosion hazard limit than the original building or structure;

the potential for surficial erosion has been addressed through proper drainage,
erosion and sediment control and site stabilization/restoration plans;

the natural features and/or ecological functions associated with conservation of
land are protected, pollution is prevented and erosion and dynamic beach
hazards have been adequately addressed.

3.2.5 Development within the Dynamic Beach Hazard

Background

For the purpose of the following policies the Dynamic Beach Hazard is the limit of the landward
extent of the 100 year flood elevation limit, plus the allowance for wave uprush and other
water-related hazards, plus the dynamic beach allowance. The dynamic beach allowance is 30

metres on Lake Ontario unless otherwise documented in an approved technical study.

LTC Policies
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1) Development shall not be permitted within the dynamic beach hazard.

2) Stabilization works within the dynamic beach hazard to allow for future/proposed
development or an increase in development envelope or area shall not be permitted.

2}3)Notwithstanding Section 3.2.5 2), major stabilization works (such as a beach curb) may be
permitted at the transition area between the dynamic beach and existing development if it
has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion,
pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be affected through a
satisfactory engineering design by a qualified professional.

3}4)Development associated with new and/or the expansion of existing trailer
parks/campgrounds in the dynamic beach hazard shall not be permitted.

435)Major development within the dynamic beach hazard shall not be permitted.

5}6)Redevelopment of derelict and abandoned buildings within the dynamic beach hazard shall
not be permitted.

6}7)Stormwater management facilities within the dynamic beach hazard shall not be permitted.
#4}8)Basements within the dynamic beach hazard shall not be permitted.
2}9)Underground parking within the dynamic beach hazard shall not be permitted.

9310)  Notwithstanding Section 3.2.5 1), underground public infrastructure (i.e. sewers) and
various utilities (e.g. pipelines) may be permitted within the dynamic beach hazard subject
to the activity being approved through a satisfactory Environmental Assessment process
and/or if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding,
erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be affected.

10311) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.5 1), development associated with public parks (e.g.
passive or low intensity outdoor recreation, -education, or trail systems) may be permitted
within the dynamic beach hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that
the control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will
not be affected.

1412) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.5 1), conservation or restoration projects may be permitted
within the dynamic beach hazard subject to the activity being approved through a
satisfactory Environmental Assessment process and/or if it has been demonstrated to the
satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the
conservation of land will not be affected.

12)13) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.5 1), development may be permitted for the reconstruction
or relocation of a building within the dynamic beach hazard if it has been demonstrated to
the satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or
the conservation of land will not be affected. The submitted plans must demonstrate that:

a) there is no feasible alternative site outside of the dynamic beach hazard and
that the proposed development is located in an area of least (and acceptable)
risk;

b) the building or structure is no closer to the hazard than existing development;
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c)
d)

e)

f)

h)

the building or structure does not exceed the original floor space;
there is no impact on existing and future dynamic beach movement;

development will not prevent access into and along the dynamic beach hazard
in order to undertake preventative actions/maintenance or during an
emergency;

development will have no negative impacts on natural shoreline processes;

the potential for surficial erosion has been addressed through the submission of
proper drainage, erosion and sediment control and site stabilization/restoration
plans;

natural features and/or ecological functions contributing to the conservation of
land are protected, pollution is prevented, and flooding, erosion and dynamic
beach hazards have been adequately addressed.; and

the plan has been carried out by a qualified professional with recognized
expertise in the appropriate discipline and must be prepared using established
procedures and recognized methodologies to the satisfaction of LTC.

13}14) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.5 1), removal or placement of minor fill and site grading
may be permitted within the dynamic beach hazard if it has been demonstrated to the
satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the
conservation of land will not be affected.

14115) Notwithstanding Section 3.2.5 1), development associated with the placement of fill for
the replacement of a sewage disposal system may be permitted within the dynamic beach
hazard if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of the LTC that the control of flooding,
erosion, pollution, dynamic beaches or the conservation of land will not be affected. The
replacement system should be located outside of the dynamic beach hazard where possible,
and only permitted within the dynamic beach hazard subject to being located in the area of
least and acceptable risk. The LTC may request a technical study to ensure that the
development is not subject to risk, and/or to establish the area of least and acceptable risk.

3.2.6 Development within the Allowance Adjacent to the Dynamic Beach Hazard

LTC Policies

1)

Development may be permitted within the allowance adjacent to the dynamic beach hazard
if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control of flooding, erosion,
pollution, dynamic beach or the conservation of land will not be affected. The submitted
plans must demonstrate that:

a)
b)
c)

development does not create or aggravate the dynamic beach hazard;
development does not prevent access to and along the dynamic beach;

where new development is proposed adjacent to the dynamic beach hazard, all
buildings or structures must be located a minimum horizontal distance of 6
metres beyond the furthest landward extent of the dynamic beach hazard;
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d) for additions to existing buildings or structures located within the 6-metre
setback allowance, the addition cannot encroach further into the setback from
the dynamic beach hazard than the original building or structure;

e) for reconstruction of buildings or structures located within the 6-metre setback
allowance, the new building or structure is constructed in the same location as
the original building or structure provided that there are no reasonable
alternatives to locate the new building or structure outside of the required
setback, and the new building or structure cannot encroach further into the
setback from the dynamic beach hazard than the original building or structure;

f) the potential for surficial erosion has been addressed through proper drainage,
erosion and sediment control and site stabilization/ restoration plans; and

g) the natural features and/or ecological functions contributing to the
conservation of land are protected, pollution is prevented and flooding and
erosion hazards have been adequately addressed.
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4 RIVER OR STREAM VALLEYS

4.1 Ontario Regulation 163/06

The following section identifies how the extent of river or stream valleys are determined for the purpose
of administering the LTC Regulation. Inland lakes that do not meet the definition of “large inland lake”
(i.e., waterbody that has a surface area equal to or greater than 100 square kilometers where there is no
measurable or predictable response to a single runoff event) should be treated in a manner similar to a
river or stream valley.

The LTC Regulation contains the following sections dealing with river or stream valleys:

Development prohibited

2.(1) Subject to section 3, no person shall undertake development or permit another person to
undertake development in or on areas within the jurisdiction of the Authority that are:

(b) river or stream valleys that have depressional features associated with a
river or stream, whether or not they contain a watercourse, the limits of
which are determined in accordance with the following rules:

(i) where the river or stream valley is apparent and has stable slopes, the valley
extends from the stable top of bank, plus 15 metres, to a similar point on
the opposite side,

(ii) where the river or stream valley is apparent and has unstable slopes, the
valley extends from the predicted long term stable slope projected from the
existing stable toe of the slope or, if the toe of the slope is unstable, from
the predicted location of the toe of slope as a result of stream erosion over
a projected 100 year period, plus 15 metres, to a similar point on the
opposite side,

(iii) where the river or stream valley is not apparent, the valley extends the
greater of,

A. the distance from a point outside the edge of the maximum extent of the
floodplain under the applicable Regulatory floodplain event standard, plus
15 metres, to a similar point on the opposite side, and

B. the distance from the predicted meander belt of a watercourse,
expanded as required to convey the flood flows under the
applicable flood event standard, plus 15 metres, to a similar point
on the opposite side.

Permission to develop

3.(1) The Authority may grant permission for development in or on the areas described in
subsection 2(1) if, in its opinion, the control of flooding, erosion, dynamic beaches, pollution or
the conservation of land will not be affected by the development.

(2) The permission of the Authority shall be given in writing, with or without conditions.
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4.2 Policy Standards

The following sections outline the policy standards for implementing the LTC Regulation with respect to
river and stream valleys and the associated allowance lands adjacent to natural hazards. LTC, in their
role through the planning process, should review planning applications to ensure that, in general, all
development can occur an appropriate distance from the river and stream valley hazards.

Development will not be permitted within the regulated area associated with a valley, except in
accordance with the policies contained in this section. Note that the hazard lands associated with the
River and Stream Valleys and associated policies with these hazard lands are discussed in Section 4 of
this report.

4.2.1 Development within the Allowance Adjacent to the Erosion Hazard of a River or Stream
Valley
Background

The guidelines for development within the 15 metre adjacent lands to an erosion hazard include
an erosion access setback. Note that access is required along the hazard as well as between
buildings to allow for heavy equipment access to the hazard area. Three main principles support
the inclusion of an erosion access setback:

e providing for emergency access to erosion prone areas;

e providing for construction access for regular maintenance and access to the site in the
event of an erosion event or failure of a structure; and

e providing protection against unforeseen or predicted external conditions which could
have an adverse effect on the natural conditions or processes acting on or within an
erosion prone area.

The erosion access setback for river and stream systems shall be 6 metres (Section 3.4, Technical
Guide for River and Stream Systems: Erosion Hazard Limit, MNR).

LTC Policies

1) Development may be permitted within the allowance adjacent to the erosion hazard of a
river or stream valley if it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of LTC that the control
of flooding, erosion, pollution or the conservation of land will not be affected. The
submitted plans must demonstrate that:

a) development does not create or aggravate an erosion hazard;

b) development is set back a sufficient distance from the stable top of bank to
avoid increases in loading forces on the top of the slope;

c) development is not permitted in the access setback of 6 metres from the
erosion hazard;

d) for additions to existing buildings or structures located within the 6-metre
setback allowance the addition cannot encroach further into the setback from
the erosion hazard than the original building or structure;

e) for reconstruction of buildings or structures located within the 6-metre setback
allowance, the new building or structure is constructed in the same location as
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f)

the original building or structure provided that there are no reasonable
alternatives to locate the new building or structure outside of the required
setback, and the new building or structure cannot encroach further into the
setback from the erosion hazard than the original building or structure;

development does not change drainage or vegetation patterns that would
compromise slope stability or exacerbate erosion of the slope face;

development will not prevent access to and along the erosion hazard in order to
undertake preventative actions/maintenance or during an emergency;

the potential for surficial erosion has been addressed through proper drainage,
erosion and sediment control and site stabilization/restoration plans; and

natural features and/or ecological functions contributing to the conservation of
land are protected, pollution is prevented and erosion and flooding hazards
have been adequately addressed.

2) Forslopes and embankments that exist above a proposed site for development, and all or a
portion of the upper slope lies within the regulated area, a 15 metre setback from the stable
toe of slope will be applied. LTC may consider a reduction of this allowance if it can be
demonstrated that the hazard will not be aggravated and the development will not be
negatively affected by the hazard. Generally, a technical study conducted by a qualified
professional will be required for a reduction to be considered.

Development within the Allowance of the Regulatory Floodplain of River or Stream

Valleys

Background

Similar to the MNR recommended 6-metre erosion access allowance (Section 3.4, Technical
Guide for River and Stream Systems: Erosion Hazard Limit, MNR), LTC recommends that a 6-
metre flood access allowance is applied to the Regulatory floodplain as well. Note that
emergency access is required along the hazard as well as between the buildings to allow for
heavy equipment access to the hazard area.

The guidelines for development within the 15 metre adjacent lands to a flooding hazard include
a flood access setback. Three main principles support the inclusion of a flood access setback:

e providing for emergency access to flood prone areas;

e pro